
 
 

LAKE HAVASU METROPOLITAN 
PLANNING ORGANIZATION (LHMPO) 

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
Tuesday, October 11, 2016, 2:00 PM 

 
 
 
One or More Executive Board Members May Attend Telephonically 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER  

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
3. ROLL CALL 

 
4. CALL TO THE PUBLIC: This item is to provide an opportunity for citizens wishing to address the 

Executive Board on issues within the jurisdiction of the LHMPO planning area that are not on the 
Agenda.  Your comments SHALL be limited to five (5) minutes or less.  Please be advised that Executive 
Board Members may not respond to comments or questions brought up during call to the public. 

 
5. CONSENT AGENDA 
   
 5.1 Approve the Executive Board Meeting Minutes of July 19, 2016 

 (Task #100) 
   
6. ANNOUNCEMENTS, COMMUNICATIONS, UPDATE REPORTS 
 
  6.1 ADOT Northwest District Update Report 
 
  6.2 LHMPO Manager Report 
 
  6.2 Kevin Adam, Rural Transportation Advocacy Council  
 
7.  PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 

7.1    Discussion and Possible Action to Approve the 2017 Executive Board Meeting Schedule  
 (Task #102) 
 
7.2 Discussion and Possible Action to Authorize the Chairman to issue a Letter to Customs and 

Border Protection 
 (Task #102) 
 
7.3 Discussion and Possible Action to Adopt the Strategic Transportation Safety Plan 

 (Task # 601) 
   
8.  FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
  

Lake Havasu City Police Facility 
Meeting Room 

2360 McCulloch Boulevard N., 
Lake Havasu City, AZ 86403 

www.LHMPO.org 
 

Mark Nexsen - Chair 
Buster Johnson – Vice Chairman 
Don Callahan – Secretary/Treasurer 
Donna Brister-McCoy – Board Member 
Deanna Beaver – Board Member 

http://www.lhmpo.org/


Executive Board Meeting Agenda 
October 11, 2016 
Page 2 of 2  

 
 
9.   UPCOMING MEETING SCHEDULE 

 LHMPO TAC Meeting:  October 19, 2016, 1:30 PM,  900 London Bridge Rd, Bldg. B, Lake 
Havasu City, AZ 86404  

 State Transportation Board Meeting: October 21, 2016,  Wickenburg, AZ 
 Executive Board Regular Meeting:  November 8, 2016, Lake Havasu City Police Facility 

Meeting Room, 2360 McCulloch Boulevard N, Lake Havasu City, AZ 86403  
 

10.        ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

Pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), the Lake Havasu Metropolitan Planning 
Organization endeavors to ensure the accessibility of all of its programs, projects and services to all 
persons with disabilities. If you need an accommodation for this meeting, please contact Jeanette 
Buckley, Lake Havasu MPO at (928) 453-2823 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting so that 
accommodations may be arranged. 

Lake Havasu Metropolitan Planning Organization 
900 London Bridge Road, Building B 

Lake Havasu City, AZ 86404 
(928) 453-2823 

 



Agenda Item # 5.1 

LAKE HAVASU MPO 
REQUEST FOR ACTION 

OCTOBER 11, 2016 
 
 

SUBJECT:   ACTION TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA 
  
 
SUBMITTED BY:   Jean Knight, MPO Manager 
 
AGENDA TYPE:   CONSENT AGENDA 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Executive Board Meeting minutes of July 19, 2016 
 
 
SUMMARY/BACKGROUND: 
 
Attached are the minutes from the Executive Board meeting held July 19, 2016 
 
 
ACTION OPTION: 
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 
OR 
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda, with the noted changes 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 
 



 

 
 

LAKE HAVASU METROPOLITAN 
PLANNING ORGANIZATION (LHMPO) 

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
Tuesday, July 19, 2016, 2:00 PM 

 
 
 
One or More Executive Board Members May Attend Telephonically 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER  

 Chairman Nexsen called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 Chairman Nexsen led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

3. ROLL CALL 
 The roll call was performed by Jeanette Buckley: 
 Present: Mark Nexsen, Deanna Beaver, Donna Brister-McCoy; Buster Johnson participated 

telephonically. Donna Brister-McCoy arrived at 2:12 p.m. 
 Absent: Don Callahan 
 

4. CALL TO THE PUBLIC: 
 There were no public comments. 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
   
 5.1 Approve the Executive Board Meeting Minutes of June 21, 2016 

 MOTION 
 Vice-Chairman Johnson presented a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 

Motion was seconded by Member Beaver. 
 VOTE ON MOTION 
 The vote on the motion was unanimous. 

   
6. ANNOUNCEMENTS, COMMUNICATIONS, UPDATE REPORTS 
 
  6.1 ADOT Northwest District Update Report 
   Alvin Stump, ADOT Northwest District reported on the following: 

• I-40 bump repairs have been pushed back until July 29th; westbound repairs will be 
completed first; and, later this year the east bound side will be repaired 

• Announced the District will be performing its annual site visits of State Routes to inspect 
pavement condition to prioritize for road maintenance work. 

 
  6.2 LHMPO Manager Report  
   Jean Knight reported on the following: 

• Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Public Meeting is August 4, 2016, 5:00 p.m.-7:00 
p.m. at Lake Havasu City Aquatic Center, Relics and Rods Hall 

Lake Havasu City Police Facility 
Meeting Room 

2360 McCulloch Boulevard N., 
Lake Havasu City, AZ 86403 

www.LHMPO.org 
 

Mark Nexsen - Chair 
Buster Johnson – Vice Chairman 
Don Callahan – Secretary/Treasurer 
Donna Brister-McCoy – Board Member 
Deanna Beaver – Board Member 

http://www.lhmpo.org/


Executive Board Meeting Minutes 
July 19, 2016 
Page 2 of 3  

 
• Mohave County Public Works Department sent pictures of the bike striping on London 

Bridge Road to Lake Havasu MPO 
• Lake Havasu MPO posted the Mohave County (LHMPO Region) bike striping pictures 

on Facebook and 2382 people were reached; and, a lot of positive comments received. 
   
7.  PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 

7.1    Discussion and Possible Action to Approve Addendum No. 1 to the Lake Havasu Metropolitan 
Planning Organization Manager Contract 

 Kelly Garry, Lake Havasu City Attorney, advised the Executive Board that in accordance with 
the Employment Contract, the LHMPO Manager was evaluated on June 21, 2016, and the 
Executive Board increased the annual compensation based upon finding of acceptable 
performance. A change to the Employment Contract requires an Addendum. The LHMPO 
Manager’s salary adjustment is retroactive to July 1, 2016.  

 MOTION 
 Member Beaver made a motion to approve Addendum No. 1 to the Lake Havasu MPO Manager 

Contract. Motion was seconded by Vice-Chairman Johnson. 
 VOTE ON MOTION 
 The vote on the motion was unanimous. 
  
7.2 Discussion and Possible Action to Approve the Title VI Plan and Limited English Proficiency 

Plan (LEP) 
 Jean Knight advised the Executive Board that the Title VI Plan has been revised due to ADOT 

Title VI department requiring changes this year. The primary changes were more specific 
demographic information which was available from Maricopa Association of Governments 
(MAG).  

 
 Member Beaver asked if the Title VI has been reviewed by legal counsel.  Jean Knight responded 

that it was not reviewed by legal counsel; however, the Title VI was reviewed a number of times 
by the ADOT Title VI group. The ADOT Title VI group informed Jean Knight what changes 
needed to be made to the Title VI to meet their requirements.   

 MOTION 
 Vice-Chairman Johnson made a motion to approve the Title VI Plan and Amended LEP. Motion 

was seconded by Member Beaver. 
 VOTE ON MOTION 
 The vote on the motion was unanimous. 
 

7.3 Discussion and Possible Action to Approve the FY16 – 20 Transportation Improvement Program 
(TIP) 

  Jean Knight advised the Executive Board that this is milestone for the Lake Havasu MPO to have 
their first Transportation Improvement Program (TIP).  Since the document went out to the 
Executive Board there has been notification from ADOT that there some FTA 5310 participants 
receiving grants.  Havasu Mobility, Achieve, and New Horizons received FTA Vehicle Awards in 
the amount of $269,896.   Havasu Mobility requested four new vans and received two new vans.  

   
  Chairman Nexsen questioned why the bike striping and signage was not showing funding 

available.  Jean Knight explained that at this time Transportation Alternative funding is not 
available. It stays on the Mid-Term project list until funding is available. Chairman Nexsen asked 
where the bike striping cost came from; Jean Knight indicated that the figures were a 

Lake Havasu Metropolitan Planning Organization 
900 London Bridge Road, Building B 

Lake Havasu City, AZ 86404 
(928) 453-2823 

 



Executive Board Meeting Minutes 
July 19, 2016 
Page 3 of 3  

 
recommendation from a consultant. The cost includes signage and striping and is on the high side; 
taking into consideration that federal project costs are usually higher. 

  MOTION 
  Member Beaver made a motion to approve the FY16-20 Transportation Improvement Program 

with noted changes. Motion was seconded by Vice-Chairman Johnson. 
  VOTE ON MOTION 
  The vote on the motion was unanimous. 

   
8.  FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
  No future agenda items were given. 
  
9.   UPCOMING MEETING SCHEDULE 

 LHMPO TAC Meeting:  August 16, 2016, 1:30 PM,  900 London Bridge Rd, Bldg. B, Lake 
Havasu City, AZ 86404  

 State Transportation Board Meeting: July 15, 2016, Camp Verde, AZ 
 State Transportation Board Study Session: August 30, 2016, Phoenix, AZ 
 State Transportation Board Meeting: September 16, 2016, Bullhead, AZ 
 Executive Board Regular Meeting:  TBD, Lake Havasu City Police Facility Meeting Room, 2360 

McCulloch Boulevard N, Lake Havasu City, AZ 86403  
 

10.        ADJOURNMENT 
 Motion was presented by Member Beaver to adjourn and seconded by Member Brister-McCoy. Vote on 

the motion was unanimous. Meeting adjourned at 2:22 p.m.  
 

Lake Havasu Metropolitan Planning Organization 
900 London Bridge Road, Building B 

Lake Havasu City, AZ 86404 
(928) 453-2823 

 



Agenda Item # 7.1 

LAKE HAVASU MPO 
REQUEST FOR ACTION 

OCTOBER 11, 2016  
 
 

SUBJECT:   DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE THE 2017 
EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE  

 
SUBMITTED BY:   Jean Knight, MPO Manager 
 
AGENDA TYPE:   PUBLIC HEARING 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
2017 Meeting Schedule 
 
SUMMARY/BACKGROUND: 
The 2017 Executive Board Meeting Schedule is attached for review and approval by the Board.  
The date and room are reserved; however, if a meeting is not scheduled the Board and others are 
notified. 
 
ACTION OPTION: 
Motion to approve the 2017 Executive Board Meeting Schedule 
OR 
To be determined from discussion 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Motion to approve the 2017 Executive Board Meeting Schedule 
 
 



 
 

LAKE HAVASU METROPOLITAN 
PLANNING ORGANIZATION (LHMPO) 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 
2017 MEETING SCHEDULE 

 
The following is the 2017 meeting schedule for the Lake Havasu Metropolitan 

Planning Organization (LHMPO) Executive Board 
 

MEETINGS –SECOND (2ND) TUESDAY OF THE MONTH 
  

January 10 July 11 

February 14 August 8 

March 14 September 12 

April 11 October 10 

May 9 November 14 

June 13 December 12 

  
 
LOCATION OF MEETING:  Lake Havasu City Police Facility Meeting Room 
2360 McCulloch Boulevard N, Lake Havasu City, AZ 86403 
 
TIME:  2:00 PM 
 
All meeting times and location are subject to change with adequate notice given 

 
Adequate notice will be provided if a scheduled meeting is cancelled 

 
 
LHMPO endeavors to make all public meetings accessible to persons with disabilities.  Please 
call (928) 453-2823 or e-mail buckleyj@lhcaz.gov, 72 hours prior to the meeting to request a 
reasonable accommodation to participate in this meeting.  

 
 
 
  

 LAKE HAVASU METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 
ADOT•Lake Havasu City•Mohave County 

900 London Bridge Road, Building B, Lake Havasu City, AZ 86404   
(928) 453-2823 

mailto:buckleyj@lhcaz.gov


Agenda Item # 7.2 

LAKE HAVASU MPO 
REQUEST FOR ACTION 

OCTOBER 11, 2016 
 
 

SUBJECT:   DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO AUTHORIZE THE 
CHAIRMAN TO ISSUE A LETTER TO CUSTOMS AND BORDER 
PROTECTION  

 
SUBMITTED BY:  Jean Knight, MPO Manager  
 
AGENDA TYPE:  PUBLIC HEARING  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Draft letter to Customs and Border Protection 
 
SUMMARY/BACKGROUND: 
Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) has taken the lead regarding the economic impact 
due to limiting Mexican citizen’s travel to 75 miles from the border.  In 2015 University of 
Arizona conducted an economic impact analysis of Mexican spending by expanding the travel 
zone for tourism and shopping to statewide and the estimated spending for 2016 could have 
generated $181 million, bringing the total projected spending of Mexican visitors to Arizona to 
nearly $3.1 billion.  These totals could grow each year. 
 
MAG is requesting all MPOs issue a letter to Customs and Border Protection supporting the 
expansion of the Border Zone.  The Mexican citizens applying for the Border Crossing Card 
(BCC) must receive clearance before the cards are issued and it is anticipated that less than 1% do 
not abide by the rules.  Currently Mexican citizens are not allowed to use their Visa to travel 
beyond the 75-mile limit. 
 
ACTION OPTION: 
Motion to authorize the Chairman to sign the Travel-Zone letter to Customs and Border 
Protection 
OR 
To be determined after discussion 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Motion to authorize the Chairman to sign the Travel-Zone letter to Customs and Border 
Protection 
 
 



 
Lake Havasu Metropolitan 
Planning Organization 
900 London Bridge Road, Bldg. B 
Lake Havasu City, AZ 86404 
(928) 453-2823 

 

 October 11, 2016 

Honorable R. Gil Kerlikowske 
Customs and Border Protection 
1300 Pennsylvania Ave. NW 
Washington, DC 20229 
 
Dear Commissioner Kerlikowske: 
 
On behalf of Lake Havasu MPO, I write to request your consideration for initiating a rule-making 
process to extend the 75 mile travel zone within the State of Arizona for Mexican citizens with Border 
Crossing Cards (BCC) to permit travel throughout Arizona. 
 
Mexican citizens who apply for the BCC are carefully vetted; they have a nearly flawless record of 
abiding by the rules of their visa, with the lowest overstay rate of any visa card group (less than one 
percent). Furthermore, BCC holders who wish to visit beyond the 75-mile limit are required to stop to 
obtain an I-94 visa. Extending the BCC zone would eliminate this bureaucratic step and potentially 
free resources to other needed areas, such as improving border security, since the BCC holder has 
already undergone a screening process more rigorous than the I-94 visa requirements. 
 
The current 75-mile limitation on travel inside Arizona has been in effect since 1999. At that time, the 
travel zone was extended from the original 25-mile area−enabling Mexican citizens to travel and 
shop as far north from the border as Tucson. Currently, these visitors are not allowed to use this visa 
to travel to the state’s largest metropolitan area, Phoenix, or to enjoy the beauty of Sedona or the 
Grand Canyon, or to experience the cultures of our many Native American Indian communities. With 
tourism as one of Arizona’s largest economic sector, with 171,500 jobs statewide and an economic 
impact of $20.9 billion, the economic impact from BCC holders could yield a substantial and positive 
outcome for our state. 
 
A recent study by the University of Arizona estimates that extending the tourism and shopping zone 
for BCC holders would generate approximately $181 million in additional spending by Mexican 
visitors to Arizona, increasing the spending total to nearly $3.1 billion with an impact of 31,766 jobs. 
Through this extension, all of Arizona’s businesses would benefit and allow visitors from Mexico with 
BCCs to experience the beauty of the entire state. 
 
We hope you will give this request favorable consideration and that you will initiate a rule-making 
process for this change. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Mark S. Nexsen 
LHMPO Chairman 
 



Agenda Item # 7.3 

LAKE HAVASU MPO 
REQUEST FOR ACTION 

OCTOBER 11, 2016  
 
 

SUBJECT:   DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT THE STRATEGIC 
TRANSPORTATION SAFETY PLAN (STSP)  

 
SUBMITTED BY:   Jean Knight, MPO Manager 
 
AGENDA TYPE:   PUBLIC HEARING 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
DRAFT STRATEGIC TRANSPORTATION SAFETY PLAN (STSP)  
 
SUMMARY/BACKGROUND: 
The Draft STSP has been out for public comment since September 9, 2016 and no comments 
were received.  The TAC reviewed and discussed on September 20, 2016 and is recommending 
the Executive Board Adopt the current Draft.  Within the next two months, the TAC will finalize 
and make a recommendation for future projects and staff will present to the Board for final 
approval.  Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) funding as well as Lake Havasu City 
CIP will be utilized for the programmed projects. 
 
Mike Blankenship, Amec Foster Wheeler, will present the highlights of the STSP. 
 
ACTION OPTION: 
Motion to adopt the Strategic Transportation Safety Plan 
OR 
Motion to adopt the Strategic Transportation Safety Plan with the noted changes 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Motion to adopt the Strategic Transportation Safety Plan 
 
 



Lake Havasu Metropolitan Planning Organization 
Strategic Transportation Safety Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

PREPARED BY: 

 

PREPARED FOR: 

 

 

September 2016 



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan  Page | i 

Table of Contents 

1 Executive Summary ....................................................................................................................1 

2 Introduction ...............................................................................................................................2 

3 Public Involvement .....................................................................................................................3 

4 Safety System Performance ........................................................................................................3 

5 Funding and Safety Resources ................................................................................................... 15 

 Traffic Safety Funding ................................................................................................................. 15 

 Traffic Safety Programs ............................................................................................................... 16 

6 Regional Vision and Goal .......................................................................................................... 16 

7 Emphasis Areas and Safety Strategies ....................................................................................... 17 

 Emphasis Areas ........................................................................................................................... 17 

 Safety Strategies ......................................................................................................................... 18 

8 Network Screening and Safety Needs Prioritization ................................................................... 22 

 Intersection Priority Index Ranking ............................................................................................. 22 

 Segment Priority Index Ranking .................................................................................................. 24 

 Driver Violation Network Screening ........................................................................................... 24 

9 Safety Enhancements in Projects ............................................................................................... 30 

10 Road Safety Performance Reporting .......................................................................................... 30 

11 Implementation Plan ................................................................................................................ 33 

 Candidate HSIP Projects .............................................................................................................. 33 

 Implementing an Effective STSP ................................................................................................. 38 

 

List of Tables 

Table 4-1: Fatal and Serious Injury Crashes by Corridors with Fatal Crashes ............................................. 11 

Table 7-1: Emphasis Areas .......................................................................................................................... 18 

Table 8-1: Top 20 Signalized Intersections ................................................................................................. 23 

Table 8-2: Top 20 Unsignalized Intersections ............................................................................................. 24 

Table 11-1: Crash Data for Potential HSIP Projects .................................................................................... 36 

Table 11-2: Benefit/Cost Analysis Summary ............................................................................................... 37 

 

List of Figures 

Figure 1-1:Potential Safety Projects.............................................................................................................. 2 

Figure 4-1: Crash Severity by Year ................................................................................................................ 4 

Figure 4-2: Crashes by Month ....................................................................................................................... 4 

Figure 4-3: Crashes by Day of Week ............................................................................................................. 5 

Figure 4-4: Crashes by Hour of Day............................................................................................................... 5 

Figure 4-5: Crash Violations .......................................................................................................................... 6 



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan  Page | ii 

Figure 4-6: Impaired Driver Crashes ............................................................................................................. 6 

Figure 4-7: Speeding and Distraction Crashes .............................................................................................. 7 

Figure 4-8: Crashes with At Least One Impairment ...................................................................................... 7 

Figure 4-9: Unrestrained Occupants ............................................................................................................. 8 

Figure 4-10: Crashes by Driver Age ............................................................................................................... 8 

Figure 4-11: Crashes with at Least One Driver in Age Group ....................................................................... 9 

Figure 4-12: Crashes by Light Condition ....................................................................................................... 9 

Figure 4-13: Crashes by Collision Manner .................................................................................................. 10 

Figure 4-14: LHMPO and Arizona Fatalities, Serious Injuries and Injuries Comparison ............................. 10 

Figure 4-15: Crash Locations – All Crashes ................................................................................................. 12 

Figure 4-16: Crash Locations – Fatal and Serious Injury Crashes ................................................................ 13 

Figure 4-17: Crash Locations – Bike and Pedestrian Fatal and Serious Injuries ......................................... 14 

Figure 8-1: Priority Segments...................................................................................................................... 25 

Figure 8-2: Unlawful Speeding Heat Map ................................................................................................... 26 

Figure 8-3: Speed Too Fast for Condition Heat Map .................................................................................. 27 

Figure 8-4: Driver Impairment Heat Map ................................................................................................... 28 

Figure 8-5: Unrestrained Motorist Heat Map ............................................................................................. 29 

Figure 10-1: Fatalities Performance ............................................................................................................ 31 

Figure 10-2: Fatality Rate Performance ...................................................................................................... 31 

Figure 10-3: Serious Injuries Performance .................................................................................................. 32 

Figure 10-4: Serious Injury Rate Performance ............................................................................................ 32 

Figure 10-5: Non-Motorized Serious Injuries & Fatalities Performance ..................................................... 33 

Figure 11-1: Potential HSIP Projects ........................................................................................................... 35 

Figure 11-2: STSP Implementation Process Model, FHWA ......................................................................... 38 

 

List of Appendices 

Appendix A: Public Involvement ................................................................................................................... A 

Appendix B: HSIP Project Analysis ................................................................................................................ B 

 

 



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 1 

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

With the population growth in the Lake Havasu City region, development of a Strategic Transportation 

Safety Plan (STSP) has become necessary to reduce fatal and injury traffic crashes in the region. Over the 

past 10 years (2005-2014), the region experienced 6,275 crashes, including 30 fatal crashes. State Route 

95 had the highest number of total (1,234) and fatal (11) crashes in the region. The most common crash 

type in the region was rear end (1,624), and the highest fatal crash type was pedestrian crashes (10). The 

Lake Havasu Metropolitan Planning Organization (LHMPO) led the development of this STSP to identify 

traffic safety issues and to better position the region to obtain funding to improve safety in the region. 

The LHMPO STSP vision is “Toward Zero Deaths by Reducing Crashes for a Safer Lake Havasu Region” and 

the STSP goal is “Reduce the number of fatalities and serious injuries in the Lake Havasu region by 3 to 7 

percent during the next 5 years”.  The vision and goal were developed with stakeholder input, and were 

inspired by the Federal Highway Administration’s (FHWA) vision “Towards Zero Deaths” and Arizona’s 

vision “Toward Zero Deaths by Reducing Crashes for a Safer Arizona”.  

Emphasis areas for the LHMPO region were based on the emphasis areas identified in the 2014 Arizona 

Strategic Highway Safety Plan (SHSP); these areas contribute the most to overall crashes and/or fatal 

crashes. The 11 emphasis areas for the region are:  

 Impaired Driving 

 Pedestrians 

 Older Drivers 

 Bicyclists 

 Occupant Protection 

 Lane Departure 

 Speeding and Aggressive Driving 

 Young Drivers 

 Distracted Driving 

 Intersection 

 Motorcyclists 

 

Safety strategies were generated for each emphasis area based on the 4 E’s of traffic safety: Engineering, 

Enforcement, Education, and Emergency Services. 

The FHWA established five safety performance measure requirements for state DOTs and MPOs: fatalities, 

fatality rate, serious injuries, serious injury rate, and number of combined non-motorized fatalities and 

serious injuries. These performance measures will be used to set targets and evaluate year to year 

increase or reduction in crashes.  

Network screening was conducted to determine which intersections and segments are priority locations 

for future safety projects. Using crash frequency, rate, and severity, prioritized lists of unsignalized 

intersections, signalized intersections, and segments were created. Corridors with multiple highly ranked 

intersections and segments were identified as locations for pursuing federal safety funds. These included 

corridors and systemic projects as shown in Figure 1-1. 



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 2 

Figure 1-1:Potential Safety Projects 

 

2 INTRODUCTION 

This safety plan represents the first Strategic Transportation Safety Plan (STSP) for the Lake Havasu 

Metropolitan Planning Organization (LHMPO) region. This plan establishes a vision, goal, emphasis areas, 

strategies, network screening methodology, and potential safety projects for the region, consistent with 

those set forth by the Arizona State Highway Safety Plan (SHSP). The purpose of this safety plan is to 

reduce the risk of death and serious injury to all transportation users in the LHMPO region.  

The project benefitted greatly from oversight and guidance provided by the LHMPO Technical Advisory 

Committee along with participation from law enforcement, bicycle, and pedestrian safety specialists, 

among other key stakeholders. The group was challenged to build a transportation safety culture that 

includes a broad range of experts and user groups across the four E’s of safety (engineering, enforcement, 

education, and emergency services). Continuation of this group and growth of a transportation safety 

culture in the implementation phase of this Plan will be essential to achieving lasting impacts in 

transportation safety. The stakeholders group participated in project workshops and meetings at key 

points during the project. This safety plan was developed based on: 

 State crash data analysis 

 Stakeholder input 

 Public input 

 Coordination with the Arizona Strategic Highway Safety Plan 

The LHMPO STSP will serve as a tool for recommending projects for inclusion in the Transportation 

Improvement Program and in future updates to the Regional Transportation Plan.   

  

Project Name

Pedestrian Systemic

Bicycle Systemic

SR 95

Acoma Blvd

McCulloch Blvd, Mesquite Ave & Swanson Ave

McCulloch Blvd (East)

Palo Verde Blvd

Kiowa Blvd & Bermuda Ave

London Bridge Rd



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 3 

3 PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT  

Public involvement was key in getting stakeholder and community 

feedback to address safety issues and concerns. Several opportunities 

were provided to facilitate participation in the safety plan 

development, including two public meetings, two stakeholder 

workshops, and an online survey and mapping tool. These meetings 

and workshops provided opportunities to obtain input for the plan 

development, to educate on traffic safety issues, and to solicit 

cooperation in implementing the safety plan, both on an agency and an 

individual basis.  

Public Meetings were held on the following dates: 

 October 8, 2015 – Preliminary Findings 

 August 4, 2016 - Recommendations 

Appendix A summarizes the public outreach results. 

4 SAFETY SYSTEM PERFORMANCE 

Crash data was obtained from the Arizona Department of Transportation’s (ADOT) Accident Location 

Identification and Surveillance System (ALISS) database. The most recent 10 years of crash data (2005-

2014) was analyzed to determine existing crash performance (experience), comparison to state data, and 

identify crash hot spots in the region. Key findings from the crash data analysis include: 

 33% of fatal crashes were pedestrians 

 23% of fatal crashes were single vehicle crashes 

 54% of fatal crashes occurred at night/dawn/dusk 

 63% of fatal crashes involved an impaired driver 

 30% of fatal crashes involved an older driver (65 and older) 

 37% of fatal crashes occurred on SR 95 

Figure 4-1 through Figure 4-14 summarize this data. 



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 4 

Figure 4-1: Crash Severity by Year 

 

Figure 4-2: Crashes by Month 

 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

No Injury

Possible Injury

Non Incapacitating Injury

Incapacitating Injury

Fatal

 -

 200

 400

 600

 800

 1,000

 1,200

 1,400

 1,600

 1,800

 -

 50

 100

 150

 200

 250

 300

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

M
in

o
r/

N
o

 In
ju

ry
 C

ra
sh

e
s

Fa
ta

l a
n

d
 S

er
io

u
s 

In
ju

ry
 C

ra
sh

e
s

Fatal Serious Injury Minor/No Injury



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 5 

Figure 4-3: Crashes by Day of Week 

 

Figure 4-4: Crashes by Hour of Day 

 

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

 2,500

 3,000

 -

 50

 100

 150

 200

 250

 300

 350

M
in

o
r/

N
o

 In
ju

ry
 C

ra
sh

es

Fa
ta

l a
n

d
 S

er
io

u
s 

In
ju

ry
 C

ra
sh

es

Fatal Serious Injury Minor/No Injury

 -

 200

 400

 600

 800

 1,000

 1,200

 1,400

 -

 20

 40

 60

 80

 100

 120

 140

 160

 180

 200

M
id

n
ig

h
t

1a
m

2a
m

3a
m

4a
m

5a
m

6a
m

7a
m

8a
m

9a
m

10
am

11
am

N
o

o
n

1p
m

2p
m

3p
m

4p
m

5p
m

6p
m

7p
m

8p
m

9p
m

10
p

m

11
p

m

M
in

o
r/

N
o

 In
ju

ry
 C

ra
sh

e
s

Fa
ta

l a
n

d
 S

er
io

u
s 

In
ju

ry
 C

ra
sh

e
s

Fatal Serious Injury Minor/No Injury



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 6 

Figure 4-5: Crash Violations 

 

Figure 4-6: Impaired Driver Crashes 

 

33%
25% 21%

15%
26% 34%

12%

17%
15%9%

5%

2%

9% 3% 3%

6%
1% 4%

6%

5%

2%
6%

5% 4%

3%
12% 14%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Fatal Serious  Injury Minor/No Injury

Failed To Yield Right Of Way

Failed To Keep In Proper Lane

Disregarded Traffic Signal

Unsafe Lane Change

Made Improper Turn

Drove Rode In Opposing Traffic Lane

Other

Distraction

Speeding

71%

58% 58%

18%

9%
4%

0%

5%

6%

0%

6%

4%

6%

7%

5%

0%

3%

2%

6%
12%

22%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Fatal Serious Injury Minor/No Injury

Other

Physical Impairment

Illness

Medications

Fell Asleep Fatigued

Drugs

Alcohol



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 7 

Figure 4-7: Speeding and Distraction Crashes 

 

Figure 4-8: Crashes with At Least One Impairment 

 

33%
31%

28%

17%

35%

44%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

Fatal Serious Injury Minor/No Injury

% Involving Speeding

% Involving Distraction

(38%)

(15%)

(34%)

(21%)

(%) State Values

46.7%

16.0%
8.8%

10.0%

2.3%

0.6%

0.0%

1.4%

0.8%

3.3%

2.6%

3.1%

3.3%

1.9%

0.8%

0.0%

0.7%

0.3%

0.0%

1.6%

0.6%

63.3%

26.5%

14.8%

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

Fatal Serious Injury Minor/No Injury

Medications

Physical Impairment

Illness

Other

Fell Asleep Fatigued

Drugs

Alcohol

(34%)

(20%)

(%) State Values



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 8 

Figure 4-9: Unrestrained Occupants 

 

Figure 4-10: Crashes by Driver Age 

 

45%

26%

4%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

Fatal Serious Injury Minor/No Injury

(49%)

(24%)

(%) State Values

19% 22% 24%

14%
16%

15%

14%
14%

15%

10%

16% 15%
19%

15% 13%

24%
18% 18%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Fatal Serious Injury Minor/No Injury

65+

55 - 64

45 - 54

35 - 44

25 - 34

24 - Under



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 9 

Figure 4-11: Crashes with at Least One Driver in Age Group 

 

Figure 4-12: Crashes by Light Condition 

 

23%
32% 35%

20%

25% 23%
20%

21% 22%13%

24% 22%27%

23% 19%
30%

26% 27%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

140%

160%

Fatal Serious Injury Minor/No Injury

65+

55 - 64

45 - 54

35 - 44

25 - 34

24 - Under

(15%)

(30%)

(15%)

(38%)

(%) State Values

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

5000

Daylight Dark Dawn Dusk

Fa
ta

l C
ra

sh
es

C
ra

sh
es

Axis Title

Fatal Crashes Total
Crashes



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 10 

Figure 4-13: Crashes by Collision Manner 

 

Figure 4-14: LHMPO and Arizona Fatalities, Serious Injuries and Injuries Comparison 

 

0

50

100

150

200

250

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

Se
ve

re
 C

ra
sh

es

C
ra

sh
es

Total Crashes Severe Crashes



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 11 

 

Table 4-1 shows all roads with a fatal crash during the 10 year analysis period, with SR 95 and McCulloch 

Boulevard having the highest frequency of fatal crashes, serious injury crashes, and all crashes. 

Table 4-1: Fatal and Serious Injury Crashes by Corridors with Fatal Crashes 

Corridor Fa
ta

l 

Fa
ta

l +
 S

er
io

u
s 

In
ju

ry
 

To
ta

l 
State Route 95 11 186 1234 

McCulloch Blvd 6 81 686 

Palo Verde Blvd 2 22 315 

Acoma Blvd 1 56 533 

Beachcomber Blvd 1 6 15 

Beverly Glen Dr 1 1 1 

Coral Dr 1 3 6 

Daytona Ave 1 4 66 

Kiowa Blvd 1 28 168 

Lake Havasu Ave 1 48 535 

Silver Saddle Dr 1 2 10 

Swanson Ave 1 15 156 

Thistle Dr 1 1 12 

Winterhaven Dr 1 2 4 

 

The maps in Figure 4-15 through Figure 4-17 show locations of all crashes, fatal and serious injury crashes, 

and pedestrian and bicyclist crashes. 

 

  



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 12 

Figure 4-15: Crash Locations – All Crashes 

 



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 13 

Figure 4-16: Crash Locations – Fatal and Serious Injury Crashes 

 



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 14 

Figure 4-17: Crash Locations – Bike and Pedestrian Fatal and Serious Injuries 

 



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 15 

5 FUNDING AND SAFETY RESOURCES 

 TRAFFIC SAFETY FUNDING 
The Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) is a core federal aid program administered by ADOT 

with Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) oversight. The goal of the program is to achieve a significant 

reduction in traffic fatalities and serious injuries on all public roads. The HSIP requires a data-driven, 

strategic approach to improving highway safety on all public roads that focuses on performance. The 

federal legislation states that “a highway safety improvement project is any strategy, activity or project 

on a public road that is consistent with the data-driven State Strategic Highway Safety Plan (SHSP) and 

corrects or improves a hazardous road location or feature or addresses a highway safety problem.” 

Candidate projects submitted by local agencies for HSIP funding can address spot locations or systemic 

treatments. Potential projects are prioritized based on Benefit/Cost ratio, potential crash reduction for 

fatal and incapacitating injury crashes, and consistency with the state’s SHSP emphasis areas. 

Currently, local agencies can use HSIP applications to pursue both the ADOT statewide HSIP 

apportionment and the regional apportionment to develop safety projects. Arizona HSIP funds are 

approximately $42,000,000 each year and the LHMPO is approximately $493,000 per year. Beginning in 

fiscal year 2019, these sub-allocations to COGs and MPOs will be discontinued, and all agencies will 

compete for the statewide HSIP funds. This STSP will position LHMPO and its member agencies to better 

compete for the statewide HSIP funds by identifying and justifying worthy safety projects through a data-

driven process. HSIP funding can only be used for infrastructure projects and some safety studies; with 

passage of the Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act, HSIP funds can no longer be used for 

non-infrastructure projects. 

The FAST Act replaced the MAP-21 Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) with a set-aside of Surface 

Transportation Block Grant (STBG) program funding for transportation alternatives. These set-aside funds 

include all projects and activities that were previously eligible under TAP, encompassing a variety of 

smaller-scale transportation projects such as pedestrian and bicycle facilities, recreational trails, and safe 

routes to school projects. Approximately $7,000,000 in transportation alternatives funding is available 

annually in Arizona for local agencies (excluding MAG and PAG regions, which have an additional set-

aside). STBG transportation alternatives funds are allocated through a statewide competitive process.  

The Governor’s Office of Highway Safety (GOHS) administers National Highway Traffic Safety 

Administration (NHTSA) funding through grant applications. Typical projects include law enforcement 

activities such as targeted DUI checkpoints and improvements to crash data collection. Annual funding 

available through GOHS is approximately $8,000,000 in Arizona.   

The state of Arizona taxes motor fuels and collects a variety of fees and charges relating to the registration 

and operation of motor vehicles on the public highways of the state. These revenues are deposited in the 

Arizona Highway User Revenue Fund (HURF) and are then distributed to the cities, towns, and counties 

and to the State Highway Fund. These taxes represent a primary source of revenues for highway 

construction, improvements, and other transportation related expenses. In fiscal year 2016, Mohave 

County received approximately $12,000,000 and Lake Havasu City received approximately $4,700,000 of 

HURF funds. 



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 16 

 TRAFFIC SAFETY PROGRAMS 
Several local and state safety programs are available to LHMPO and its member agencies. The following 

programs are intended to be a resource to allow collaboration among the various agencies across the 

region regarding safety strategies. 

Arizona Bicycle and Pedestrian Program 

ADOT maintains a website dedicated to providing bicycling and walking information. Resources such as 

maps, safety tips, organizations/programs, commuting information, walking and biking to school 

resources, as well as the Statewide Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan, are included at this website. More 

information can be found at the ADOT Bicycle and Pedestrian Program webpage 

(http://www.azbikeped.org/).  

Arizona Road Safety Assessment Program 

ADOT manages the Arizona Road Safety Assessment (RSA) Program, a free service to public agencies in 

Arizona. An RSA is a formal examination of user safety of a roadway by an independent multidisciplinary 

audit team. The RSA team identifies safety issues and appropriate countermeasures for the specific 

location. (https://www.azdot.gov/business/engineering-and-construction/traffic/traffic-safety/road-

safety-assessments). 

Arizona Strategic Highway Safety Plan 

The Arizona Strategic Highway Safety Plan (SHSP) was developed through a data-driven, collaborative 

approach among Arizona’s safety stakeholders. The SHSP represents the Arizona state safety goal 

statement and identifies the Emphasis Areas that the state will focus on to achieve its goal. The SHSP is 

an overarching strategic statewide safety document to guide safety planning and programming processes; 

facilitate implementation of recommended safety strategies and action steps or countermeasures 

through existing plans and programs; and modify current planning processes over time to adopt and 

institutionalize a change in Arizona’s transportation safety culture. The plan can be accesses through the 

Arizona SHSP webpage (https://azdot.gov/about/transportation-safety/arizona-strategic-highway-

safety-plan). 

Mohave County Traffic Safety Committee 

The Mohave County Traffic Safety Committee consists of representatives from the Sheriff's Office, Risk 

Management, and Public Works. This multi-disciplinary committee meets monthly to review recent 

serious traffic crashes and requests for traffic control devices.  

6 REGIONAL VISION AND GOAL 

FHWA has adopted the vision “Towards Zero Deaths” with the goal of zero fatalities across the nation’s 

highway system. In its 2014 SHSP, the state of Arizona adopted this vision to be “Toward Zero Deaths by 

Reducing Crashes for a Safer Arizona”, with a goal to reduce fatalities and serious injuries by 3-7% over 

the next 5 years (2014-2018).   

http://www.azbikeped.org/
https://www.azdot.gov/business/engineering-and-construction/traffic/traffic-safety/road-safety-assessments
https://www.azdot.gov/business/engineering-and-construction/traffic/traffic-safety/road-safety-assessments
https://azdot.gov/about/transportation-safety/arizona-strategic-highway-safety-plan
https://azdot.gov/about/transportation-safety/arizona-strategic-highway-safety-plan


 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 17 

The LHMPO STSP safety vision and goal were developed based on input from the LHMPO Technical 

Advisory Committee (TAC) and stakeholders attending the September 17, 2015 STSP workshop and to be 

consistent with the vision and goal in the Arizona SHSP.    

The safety vision for the LHMPO region is, 

“Toward Zero Deaths by Reducing Crashes for a Safer Lake Havasu Region” 

The regional goal for traffic safety is, 

“Reduce the number of fatalities and serious injuries in the Lake Havasu region by 3 

to 7 percent during the next 5 years” 

7 EMPHASIS AREAS AND SAFETY STRATEGIES 

 EMPHASIS AREAS 
In the 2014 Arizona SHSP, 12 emphasis areas and two support areas were defined for improving safety on 

roadways throughout the state. Five of the 12 emphasis areas were selected as Top Focus emphasis areas 

based on the highest number of fatalities and serious injuries. The top focus emphasis areas in the state’s 

plan are: 1) Speeding and Aggressive Driving, 2) Impaired Driving, 3) Occupant Protection/Restraint (seat 

belts, child safety seats, and helmets), 4) Motorcycles, and 5) Distracted Driving. 

The additional emphasis areas in the state plan include: 6) Roadway Infrastructure and Operations (Lane 

Departure, Intersections), 7) Age Related (Young – Under 25, Older – Over 64), 8) Heavy 

Vehicles/Buses/Transit, 9) Non-Motorized Users (Pedestrians, Bicyclists), 10) Natural Risks (Weather, 

Animals), 11) Traffic Incident Management, and 12) Interjurisdictional. The support areas are Data 

Improvements, which includes improving and sharing safety data, and Policy Initiatives, which includes 

providing direction on proposed changes to policies, procedures, or laws.  

Using these statewide emphasis areas as a framework to identify potential emphasis areas for the LHMPO 

region, regional crash data were analyzed for each emphasis area in the Arizona SHSP. From the analysis, 

emphasis areas that contributed significantly to the fatal crashes, or were comparable to the statewide 

fatal crashes were considered as an emphasis area for the region. Table 7-1 shows the emphasis areas 

chosen for the LHMPO region and the fatal crash comparison to the statewide fatal crashes. Emphasis 

areas that had a significantly higher percentage of fatal crashes than is seen statewide were identified as 

priority emphasis areas (impaired driving, pedestrians, older drivers, and bicyclists).  



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 18 

Table 7-1: Emphasis Areas 

 

 SAFETY STRATEGIES 
Strategies to improve the safety performance in the Emphasis Areas are listed below. The list is not 

comprehensive, but is provided as a toolbox of ideas which stakeholders may draw from when considering 

safety improvements.  

 Impaired Driving 

 Education 

o Improve public awareness of and access to alternate forms of transportation, especially 

during special events 

o Develop materials for educating target groups for impaired driving including mass-media 

campaigns on DUI dangers and penalties 

o Utilize Dynamic Message Signs for safety messages 

 Enforcement 

o Conduct high visibility DUI saturation patrols 

 Pedestrians 

 Engineering (Planning/Policy):  

o Encourage submittal of TIP projects that include safety elements for all modes by 

including safety as an explicit project evaluation criteria 

o Promote the use of “best practices” that integrate safety analysis and design throughout 

the planning process 

o Identify high risk locations for potential implementation of enhanced pedestrian crossings 

o Develop a system to evaluate whether certain midblock and/or multi-lane uncontrolled 

crosswalks should remain, be improved, or be removed 

o Develop an ADA Transition Plan 

o Develop and implement a Complete Streets program 

 Engineering (Design/Implementation) 

o Evaluate and install controlled pedestrian crossings 

Priority Emphasis Areas LHMPO Fatal Crashes Statewide Fatal Crashes

Impaired Driving 63% 34%

Pedestrians 33% 15%

Older Drivers 30% 15%

Bicyclists 7% 2%

Additional Emphasis Areas LHMPO Fatal Crashes Statewide Fatal Crashes

Occupant Protection 45% 49%

Lane Departure 43% 53%

Speeding 33% 38%

Young Drivers 23% 30%

Distracted Driving 17% 15%

Intersection 17% 23%

Motorcyclists 13% 15%



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 19 

o Install medians and pedestrian crossing islands where warranted 

o Provide sidewalks, multi-use paths, and/or marked crosswalks 

o Improve sight distance and/or visibility between motor vehicles and pedestrians 

o Utilize the federal Surface Transportation Block Grant Program for pedestrian facilities, 

including safe routes to school projects 

o Provide street lighting at uncontrolled arterial crosswalks 

 Education 

o Develop/maintain training and public information pedestrian safety campaigns 

o Increase pedestrian safety education for all roadway users 

o Promote the use of pedestrian safety lights and reflective wrist/ankle bands 

o Train school crossing guards, and coordinate with them to identify safety issues 

o Utilize Dynamic Message Signs for safety messages 

 Enforcement 

o Increase enforcement of existing laws designed to promote pedestrian safety, such as 

jaywalking and vehicles failing to stop for pedestrians at pedestrian crossings 

 Older Drivers 

 Engineering (Design/Implementation) 

o Improve visibility of traffic control devices 

 Education 

o Increase awareness about and availability of alternative transportation options 

o Initiate a safe driving campaign targeted at elderly drivers (including snow birds) 

o Utilize Dynamic Message Signs for safety messages 

 Bicyclists  

 Engineering (Planning/Policy)  

o Encourage submittal of TIP projects that include safety elements for all modes by 

including safety as an explicit project evaluation criteria 

o Promote the use of “best practices” that integrate safety analysis and design throughout 

the planning process 

o Identify high risk locations for potential implementation of enhanced pedestrian or bike 

crossings 

o Develop and implement a Complete Streets program 

o Develop a Bicyclist Safety Assessment (BSA) program 

o Seek funding to support safety programs for improving bicycle safety 

 Engineering (Design/Implementation) 

o Evaluate and install controlled pedestrian or bike crossings 

o Provide bicycle detection at signalized intersections 

o Provide bike lanes, separated bike lanes, bike boulevards, and off-road multi-use paths 

o Utilize the Safe Routes to School program 

o Provide street lighting at uncontrolled arterial crosswalks 

o Commit to recognizing dedicated lateral space for bicycle traffic under a (modified) 

standard cross section for one or more road functional classes 

o Bicycle striping plan through streets with adequate cross section 



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 20 

o Bicycle service facilities (racks – where to target; other service amenities for bicycle “pit 

stops”) 

o Special programs and events – Sunday street closures for bicyclists/pedestrians 

o Utilize the federal Surface Transportation Block Grant Program for bicycle facilities 

 Education 

o Develop/maintain training and public information bicycle safety campaigns 

o Increase bicycle safety education for all roadway users 

o Improve public awareness to promote safer behavior by all roadway users relative to 

bicycle traffic 

o Promote use of helmets by adult bicyclists 

o Promote the use of bike safety lights 

o Dedicated website clearinghouse on area biking opportunities, routes, safety, reminders, 

planning, etc. 

o Utilize Dynamic Message Signs for safety messages 

 Enforcement 

o Increase enforcement of existing laws designed to promote bicycle safety, such as wrong-

way riding and vehicles encroaching on bicycle facilities 

 Occupant Protection 

 Education 

o Utilize Dynamic Message Signs for safety messages 

 Enforcement 

o Conduct high visibility, saturated seat-belt enforcement campaigns 

 Lane Departure 

 Engineering (Design/Implementation) 

o Use traffic control devices to better delineate the edge of the roadway (i.e. signs, RPMs, 

edgelines, rumble strips) 

o Construct roadway infrastructure improvements (i.e. paved/graded shoulders, gradual 

side slopes, etc.) 

o Minimize potential for overturning or colliding with another object for vehicles which run 

off the road 

 Education 

o Increase public education on corrective roadway departure driving techniques 

o Utilize Dynamic Message Signs for safety messages 

 Speeding 

 Engineering 

o Install speed feedback signs 

o Install traffic calming to reduce speeds 

 Education 

o Utilize Dynamic Message Signs for safety messages 

 Enforcement 

o Targeted enforcement in school zones and locations with speeding related crashes 



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 21 

 Young Drivers 

 Education 

o Identify best practices for promoting and/or implementing Safe Driving pledge campaigns 

o Strengthen driver education 

o Promote stronger parental/guardian education and engagement in the licensure process 

for young drivers 

o Enhance outreach campaigns to young drivers and their families about safe driving 

behavior and programs, e.g. the Tucson Police Department’s START (Safe Teen Accident 

Reduction Training) Program 

o Develop public relations campaigns highlighting the risks of distracted driving 

o Promote insurance and other incentives for safe driving 

o Conduct mock crash demonstrations for high school students 

o Promote technology which monitors young driver behavior 

o Utilize Dynamic Message Signs for safety messages 

 Distracted Driving 

 Education 

o Initiate/strengthen distracted driving campaigns 

o Utilize Dynamic Message Signs for safety messages 

 Enforcement 

o Implement local ordinance banning texting while driving  

 Provide information to City Council on crash reductions associated with banning 

texting while driving, societal costs of these crashes 

  Intersection 

 Engineering 

o To reduce conflicts and crash severity, require alternative intersection consideration in 

the project assessment phase (e.g. roundabouts, indirect left turns, etc.) by 2020  

o By 2018, update signal timing on a regular schedule and implement adaptive signal 

control and centralized control to improve intersection operations and safety 

o Adopt consistent signal timing practices (e.g. left-turn phasing, clearance intervals, etc.) 

in metro areas by 2018 to eliminate driver confusion 

o Increase coordination between state and local signals by 2018 to improve operations and 

reduce driver frustration 

o Consider adding dilemma-zone detection at intersections with a high frequency of speed-

related crashes by 2020 

 Education 

o By 2018, create radio and/or television public service announcements on red light running 

and air them 4 times per year 

 Enforcement 

o Focus on speed and red light running enforcement 

  Motorcyclists 

 Engineering (Design/Implementation) 



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 22 

o Improve infrastructure features to help reduce the number and severity of motorcycle 

crashes 

 Education 

o Improve public awareness, education and training for motorcyclists, motorists, and all 

safety stakeholders to promote safer driving behaviors 

o Enhance rider training programs to improve motorcycle safety 

o Promote use of helmets  

o Utilize Dynamic Message Signs for safety messages 

8 NETWORK SCREENING AND SAFETY NEEDS PRIORITIZATION 

Network screening of a roadway system is the data-driven analysis of the intersections and segments 

within the system. The process utilizes spatial analysis of crash data and is used to determine high priority 

locations that may require safety improvements. Crashes are spatially attributed to individual 

intersections and segments in order to facilitate network analysis. 

The goal of network screening is to develop a list of specific sites that are ranked by priority. Priority is 

typically developed from crash frequency, rate, and severity, but other crash factors can be incorporated 

into the analysis as appropriate. This priority list is then used to plan and implement safety projects at 

individual locations or at the system-wide level. The list can also serve as a resource for local governments 

when applying for state or federal traffic safety funding. 

A Priority Index (PI) ranking was used to screen intersections, and a combination of PI ranking and sliding 

window analysis was used to screen segments. The PI ranking system has been used successfully in Arizona 

by the Pima County DOT, PAG, and Yuma MPO to identify high-risk locations and is recommended for use 

by the LHMPO based on: 

 Minimal data requirements (traffic volumes, crash frequency, and crash severity) 

 Reliability in identifying high-risk locations 

 Flexibility (agencies can adjust the importance of the 3 crash factors used to calculate the PI) 

The PI rankings developed for this STSP gave equal weighting to crash frequency, crash severity, and crash 

rate.  

 INTERSECTION PRIORITY INDEX RANKING 
The resulting lists of signalized and unsignalized intersections are intended to provide LHMPO with a 

guideline in determining locations that may require a closer examination for safety improvements. 

Individual priority ranking lists were developed for signalized and unsignalized intersections. Traffic 

volumes were assigned to intersections using the ADOT and LHMPO Transportation Data Management 

System databases. The top 20 signalized intersection priority ranking is shown in Table 8-1. The top 20 

unsignalized intersection priority ranking is shown in Table 8-2. 



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 23 

Table 8-1: Top 20 Signalized Intersections 

Intersection ADT Crash 
Frequency 

Crash 
Rate 

Severity 
Index 

PI 
Rank 

SR 95 & Kiowa Blvd 26481 103 1.07 1.89 1 

SR 95 & Acoma Blvd South 19898 76 1.05 1.97 2 

SR 95 & Mesquite Ave / London Bridge Rd 20909 126 1.65 1.58 3 

Lake Havasu Ave & McCulloch Blvd 23312 101 1.19 1.62 4 

Lake Havasu Ave & Mesquite Ave 23980 129 1.47 1.47 4 

SR 95 & Palo Verde Blvd North 21345 69 0.89 1.98 6 

Acoma Blvd & McCulloch Blvd 22514 99 1.20 1.46 7 

Acoma Blvd & Palo Verde Blvd South 21198 74 0.96 1.71 8 

SR 95 & Mulberry Ave 21308 66 0.85 1.85 8 

SR 95 & Palo Verde Blvd South 24834 76 0.84 1.72 8 

SR 95 & Oro Grande Blvd 19349 72 1.02 1.66 11 

SR 95 & Swanson Ave 23410 71 0.83 1.82 12 

McCulloch Blvd & Smoketree Ave 18530 66 0.98 1.60 13 

Lake Havasu Ave & Swanson Ave 18042 73 1.11 1.36 14 

SR 95 & Smoketree Ave 21530 60 0.76 1.83 14 

SR 95 & Industrial Blvd 27822 44 0.43 1.90 16 

McCulloch Blvd & Riviera Blvd 12649 20 0.43 2.11 17 

Lake Havasu Ave & Mulberry Ave 9583 28 0.80 1.49 18 

SR 95 & Acoma Blvd West 23390 48 0.56 1.59 18 

SR 95 & London Bridge Rd 18937 7 0.10 3.06 20 

 



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 24 

Table 8-2: Top 20 Unsignalized Intersections 

Intersection ADT Crash 
Frequency 

Crash 
Rate 

Severity 
Index 

PI 
Rank 

Acoma Blvd S & Swanson Ave 19304 38 0.54 2.19 1 

Mesquite Ave & Riviera Blvd 14489 40 0.76 1.85 2 

Acoma Blvd W & Lake Havasu Ave N 9210 43 1.28 1.70 3 

Lake Havasu Ave N & Kiowa Blvd N 14856 34 0.63 1.80 4 

Swanson Ave & Mulberry Ave 9110 20 0.60 2.01 5 

McCulloch Blvd N & el Dorado Ave S 13613 21 0.42 2.70 6 

Lake Havasu Ave N & N Palo Verde Blvd 14493 24 0.45 2.01 7 

Acoma Blvd W & Havasupai Blvd 11406 26 0.62 1.78 8 

Kiowa Blvd N & Avalon Ave 7846 13 0.45 2.26 9 

Saratoga Ave & Jamaica Blvd S 6541 14 0.59 1.97 10 

Daytona Ave & Mulberry Ave 3783 9 0.65 1.87 11 

Jamaica Blvd S & McCulloch Blvd 8973 23 0.70 1.47 12 

Mesquite Ave & Smoketree Ave N 12621 26 0.56 1.48 13 

Smoketree Ave N & N Acoma Blvd 16893 23 0.37 1.77 14 

McCulloch Blvd S & Chemehuevi Blvd 9092 10 0.30 2.08 15 

Palo Verde Blvd S & Kiowa Blvd S 14952 16 0.29 1.98 15 

Kiowa Rd & Bermuda Ave 10111 17 0.46 1.62 15 

Acoma Blvd S & Daytona Ave 18372 31 0.46 1.28 15 

Acoma Ln W & Kiowa Ave 2307 6 0.71 1.97 19 

McCulloch Blvd & Bermuda Ave 13850 21 0.42 1.70 19 

 SEGMENT PRIORITY INDEX RANKING 
Priority Index values were generated for segments using a sliding window analysis. This analysis excluded 

intersection crashes to focus on crashes on just the segments. PI values were calculated for a segment 

length of 0.3 miles. This window is incrementally moved by 0.1 miles along each corridor. This is repeated 

until the entire road has been analyzed by 0.3 mile segments. The 0.3-mile long windows with the highest 

PI values are the segments identified as high crash risk locations. Results of the segment analysis are 

highlighted in Figure 8-1. 

 DRIVER VIOLATION NETWORK SCREENING 
Heat maps were created for major driver violations associated with crashes and crash severity. The 

violations included exceeding the lawful speed, speed too fast for conditions, impaired driving, and not 

wearing a seat belt. These heat maps, shown in Figure 8-2 through Figure 8-5, are useful for law 

enforcement to conduct targeted enforcement and education campaigns. 

  



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 25 

Figure 8-1: Priority Segments 

 



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 26 

Figure 8-2: Unlawful Speeding Heat Map 

 



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 27 

Figure 8-3: Speed Too Fast for Condition Heat Map 

 



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 28 

Figure 8-4: Driver Impairment Heat Map 

 



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 29 

Figure 8-5: Unrestrained Motorist Heat Map 

 

 



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 30 

9 SAFETY ENHANCEMENTS IN PROJECTS 

Safety is often viewed as an “extra” or “add-on” or even a nuisance to incorporate into a project, when in 

fact it should be mainstreamed and explicitly considered on every project. 

Traffic safety programs, projects, and policies included in the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 

have a higher likelihood of being implemented. The following should be considered for inclusion in the 

future TIPs and Regional Transportation Plan updates:  

 Develop evaluation criteria to explicitly consider safety in project programming 

o Give higher priority to projects that address STSP Emphasis Areas 

o Give higher priority to locations experiencing fatal and serious injury crashes 

 Include systematic safety improvements in projects, e.g. shoulders, bike lanes, sidewalks, 

lighting 

 Conduct Road Safety Assessments (RSA) during: 

o Project design stage submittals 

o Evaluation of high priority locations 

10 ROAD SAFETY PERFORMANCE REPORTING 

On April 14, 2016, the FHWA final rule for “National Performance Management Measures: Highway Safety 

Improvement Program” went into effect. This rule established the procedures, data, reporting 

requirements, and potential consequences for safety performance at State DOT and MPO levels. In 

general, this rule is designed to further the use of data to better inform transportation planning and 

programming with the aim of reducing fatalities and serious injuries. Key provisions in the rule include: 

 5 Performance Measures are required: 

1. Number of Fatalities  

2. Rate of Fatalities per 100 million vehicle miles traveled (VMT) 

3. Number of Serious Injuries 

4. Rate of Serious Injuries per 100 million VMT 

5. Number of Non-motorized Fatalities and Serious Injuries 

 Annual update frequency 

 A target must be set for each of the 5 performance areas by February 27, 2018 

 5-year rolling averages are used to soften variability in data 

 States have “met” or “made” significant progress if four out of five targets are met, or 

performance is better than baseline 

 MPOs are to report their targets to the State in an agreed upon manner 

 Fatality Analysis Reporting System FARS is to be used for fatal data 

 State crash database is to be used for serious injury data 

Figure 10-1 through Figure 10-5 provide crash performance for the most recent crash data to provide an 

example of how these performance measures can be utilized. 



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 31 

Figure 10-1: Fatalities Performance 

 

Figure 10-2: Fatality Rate Performance 

 

3
.6

3
.4

2
.6 3

.0

2
.6

4 4 4

2

4

3

0

6

0

2.58 2.57 2.55 2.54 2.52

2.56 2.53 2.49 2.45 2.42

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
Fa

ta
lit

ie
s

Year

5-Year Avg Fatalities Fatalities 3% Decrease in 5 Years 7% Decrease in 5 Years

0
.7

6

0
.7

7

0
.5

8 0
.7

7

0
.6

7

0.51

1.02

0.78

0.00

1.56

0.00

0.67 0.67 0.66 0.66 0.66 0.65

0.67 0.66 0.65 0.64 0.63 0.62

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Fa
ta

lit
y 

R
at

e

Year

5-Year Avg Fatality Rate Fatality Rate 3% Decrease in 5 Years 7% Decrease in 5 Years



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 32 

Figure 10-3: Serious Injuries Performance 

 

Figure 10-4: Serious Injury Rate Performance 

 

8
3

.0

8
4

.4

8
8

.8 9
8

.8

9
4

.8

91

71

46

91

116

98
93

96

71

94.23 93.66 93.09 92.52 91.96

93.47 92.15 90.82 89.49 88.16

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
Se

ri
o

u
s 

In
ju

ri
es

Year

LHMPO Serious Injuries Frequency

5-Year Avg Serious Injuries Serious Injuries 3% Decrease in 5 Years 7% Decrease in 5 Years

2
6

.3
7

2
6

.0
7

2
5

.5
7

2
5

.4
4

2
4

.5
6

23.18

29.55

25.48
24.05

24.95

18.77

24.41 24.27 24.12 23.97 23.82

24.22 23.87 23.53 23.19 22.84

0.00

10.00

20.00

30.00

40.00

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Se
ri

o
u

s 
In

ju
ry

 R
at

e

Year

5-Year Avg Serious Injuries Rate Serious Injuries Rate

3% Decrease in 5 Years 7% Decrease in 5 Years



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 33 

Figure 10-5: Non-Motorized Serious Injuries & Fatalities Performance 

 

In addition to the required performance measures, LHMPO may also want to track output performance 

measures, examples of which include number of: 

 High-visibility enforcement campaigns 

 Public Service Announcements 

 Cost spent on safety projects 

 Intersections with improved pavement markings 

 Miles of rumble strips installed 

 Miles of bike lanes installed 

 Before/After safety evaluations 

 Total design and existing RSAs conducted 

11 IMPLEMENTATION PLAN  

 CANDIDATE HSIP PROJECTS 
Beginning in 2019, HSIP funds will no longer be allocated to the MPOs and COGs in Arizona; all agencies 

will compete statewide for HSIP funding for safety projects. It will be difficult for spot improvement 

8
.8

8
.6

8
.4 9

.0

7
.8

9 9

5

10

11

8
8

8

4

7.75 7.71 7.66 7.62 7.57

7.69 7.58 7.47 7.36 7.25

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
Se

ri
o

u
s 

In
ju

ri
es

 a
n

d
 F

at
al

it
ie

s

Year
5-Year Avg Non-Motorized Serious Injuries and Fatalities Non-Motorized Serious Injuries and Fatalities

3% Decrease in 5 Years 7% Decrease in 5 Years



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 34 

projects to generate a sufficiently high benefit/cost ratio due to not experiencing enough fatal and serious 

injury crashes. To improve the odds of receiving these federal funds that flow through ADOT, LHMPO 

should focus on corridor or systemic projects that have a significant number of fatal and serious injury 

crashes. Systemic projects address a particular crash type or road user, for example pedestrian crashes or 

road departure crashes. ADOT’s updated HSIP guidelines include the following requirements for a project 

to be considered for HSIP funds: 

 Minimum benefit/cost ratio of 1.5 

 Only fatal and serious injury crashes can be used to calculate benefits 

 Minimum project cost of $250,000 

 Most recent 5 years of crash data must be used 

 Project must address emphasis area(s) in the state SHSP 

High priority intersections and segments identified in the network screening analysis were combined to 

develop candidate HSIP projects in the region, with added weigh given to locations with multiple fatal 

and/or serious injury crashes. TAC members reviewed the projects and provided input on existing 

conditions, safety concerns, and suggestions for alternative or additional corridors. Figure 11-1 shows the 

HSIP corridors for the region.  Projects analyzed for potential HSIP funding requests included: 

 Corridors 

o Acoma Boulevard (Kiowa Ave to SR 95 south) 

o Bermuda Avenue & Kiowa Boulevard (Palo Verde Blvd S to Driftwood Dr) 

o London Bridge Road through LHMPO region 

o McCulloch, Mesquite & Swanson (SR 95 to Acoma Blvd)  

o Palo Verde Boulevard South (SR 95 to Sunfield Dr) 

o McCulloch Boulevard East (Acoma Blvd to SR 95 south) 

o SR 95 through LHMPO region 

 Systemic 

o Pedestrian 

o Bicycle 

  



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 35 

Figure 11-1: Potential HSIP Projects 

 



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 36 

Crash data for 2015 became available in June 2016; therefore, the most recent 5 years of data used in the 

ADOT HSIP benefit/cost analysis was 2011-2015. Fatal and serious injury crashes were analyzed based on 

location, crash type, lighting conditions, and driver violations to determine appropriate safety 

countermeasures. A summary of the crash data for the potential HSIP projects is provided in Table 11-1.  

Table 11-1: Crash Data for Potential HSIP Projects 

Corridor/Systemic Project 
Fatal  
Crashes 

Serious Injury 
Crashes Most Common Crash Type 

Acoma Blvd 1 15 Angle 35% 

Bermuda Ave & Kiowa Blvd 0 9 Angle 33% 

London Bridge Road 0 8 Single Vehicle 62% 

McCulloch, Mesquite & 
Swanson  0 56 Angle 31% 

Palo Verde 2 17 Angle or Rear End 32% 

McCulloch Blvd East 2 30 Angle 31% 

SR 95 9 101 Angle 31% 

Pedestrian 3 15 - 

Bicycle 2 13 - 

 

The ADOT Crash Modification Factors (CMF) from the Application for HSIP Projects were primarily used to 

determine appropriate countermeasures that address specific problems within the study areas. The 

FHWA CMF Clearinghouse website was used to determine CMFs for countermeasures not included in the 

ADOT application. Only CMFs with a 4 or 5 star rating were used in the development of Benefit/Cost ratios. 

It should be noted that CMFs obtained from the CMF Clearinghouse website must be approved by ADOT 

TSS prior to submitting an application for funding. 

If multiple countermeasures were applicable to one crash, then a combined CMF was used to determine 

the Benefit/Cost ratio. Once each specific project Benefit/Cost ratio was calculated, then one overall 

corridor Benefit/Cost ratio was determined by using the total cost for all improvements within the corridor 

and one CMF that was developed by determining the number of reduced crashes per year based on the 

project CMFs and calculating the corridor CMF as the number of reduced crashes divided by the average 

number of crashes per year of severity 4 or 5 within the corridor. 

Table 11-2 summarizes the benefit/cost analysis for each corridor. Detailed summaries of the preliminary 

planning level cost estimates and BC Ratio Worksheets are included in Appendix B. 



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 37 

Table 11-2: Benefit/Cost Analysis Summary 

 

Project Name Project Number Improvements Total Cost B/C Ratio

1a Improve Signal Visibility $82,130.16 6.8

1b Install dynamic signal warning flashers $52,987.20 19.3

1 1a, 1b $135,117.36 11.1

2 Improve Signal Visibility $87,649.66 2.1

3 Improve Signal Visibility $87,649.66 1.6

4a Install Median $1,517,862.50 11.6

4b Add Street Lighting $162,273.30 78.1

4 4a, 4b $1,680,135.80 14.8

5 Add passing lanes $1,942,864.00 5.6

6 Street Lighting $324,546.60 8.5

Total $4,257,963.00 7.6

1a Install centerline and shoulder rumble strips $96,874 9.4

1b Install wider markings without resurfacing $342,496 3.0

1c Street Lighting $630,800 2.3

1 1a, 1b, 1c $1,070,170 1.0

2 Automated Speed Enforcement System $325,400 0.5

Total $1,428,240 1.0

1 4-way stop - improve sight visibility $69,930 78.0

2
Provide flashing beacon at stop controlled 

intersection
$101,550 9.7

3 Install wider markings without resurfacing $179,790 1.9

Total $341,840 3.0

1 Traffic Signal $426,800 4.3

2
Dilemma Zone Protection Using Actuated Advance 

Warning System
$79,050 3.2

3 Traffic Signal $426,800 1.8

4 HAWK $150,600 8.0

5 HAWK $150,600 3.2

6 Install wider markings without resurfacing $247,150 3.7

7 Street Lighting $478,100 2.8

8 Automated Speed Enforcement System $317,900 7.6

$2,388,000 8.3

1 Traffic Signal $427,800 4.3

2 Install dynamic signal warning flashers $95,050 2.9

3
Dilemma Zone Protection Using Actuated Advance 

Warning System
$79,050 1.0

4 Install raised medians $484,100 5.2

5 Lengthen left turn storage $137,400 6.8

6 Traffic Signal $426,800 2.1

7 Street Lighting $768,500 2.1

Total $2,506,900 3.4

1 Improve Signal Visibility $137,325 1.0

2 Install Raised Medians $3,144,000 0.6

Total $3,290,400 0.7

1
Dilemma Zone Protection Using Actuated Advance 

Warning System
$91,550 2.4

2 Traffic Calming $418,000 12.8

3 Automated Speed Enforcement System $330,400 7.0

Total $836,000 11.2

1 Restripe for Bike Lanes $191,375 6.4

2 Restripe for Bike Lanes $301,200 15.8

3 Restripe for Bike Lanes $53,275 11.2

4 Restripe for Bike Lanes $53,275 11.2

Total $599,125 7.9

1 Add Sidewalks $381,700 1.4

2 Street Lighting $277,800 0.9

3 HAWK $134,825 8.5

Total $803,400 1.3

Palo Verde Boulevard

McCulloch Boulevard East

State Route 95

Bicycle Systemic

Pedestrian Systemic

London Bridge Road

Bermuda Avenue and 

Kiowa Boulevard

McCulloch, Mesquite, and 

Swanson

Acoma Boulevard



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 38 

 IMPLEMENTING AN EFFECTIVE STSP 
An effective strategic transportation safety plan is feasible, living, and regularly updated and embraced 

by safety stakeholders. Figure 11-2 highlights FHWA’s eight elements of a STSP Implementation Process 

Model.  

Figure 11-2: STSP Implementation Process Model, FHWA 

 

These elements and the following components are key factors in the Implementation Plan: 

 Document measureable objectives and performance measures for each emphasis area 

 Determine the data requirements for each performance measure 

 Identify the required resources and action steps for implementing each countermeasure 

 Identify a process to track countermeasure and action step implementation 

 Integrate the STSP with other transportation safety plans 

 Market STSP through branding, news events, web sites, and newsletters 

 Track regularly the extent to which emphasis area strategies are being implemented 

The owner and main point of contact for the STSP is the LHMPO Director/Manager. In addition to the 

LHMPO Director/Manager, the following will also need to be involved in tracking and implementing the 

STSP recommendations: 

 Lake Havasu City Assistant Engineer 

 Lake Havasu City Operations Director 

 Mohave County Engineer 

 Mohave County Public Works Director 

Recommendations to encourage stakeholder support and participation in implementing the plan include: 

 Form a STSP Champions Working Group of key safety stakeholders to identify issues affecting the 

implementation of the plan, celebrate successes, and identify emerging safety issues and discuss 

new safety strategies will help ensure the STSP is continually employed in the region 



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan Page | 39 

 Host an annual Regional Traffic Safety Conference to promote traffic safety for all stakeholders 

 Form a fatal crash investigation team of engineering, law enforcement, and risk management to 

analyze fatal crashes in the region, similar to the Mohave County Traffic Safety Committee 

 Update the STSP on a regular cycle, e.g., every 3 to 5 years 



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Plan  Page | A 

Appendix A: Public Involvement 

  



This report documents the 
community input received during 
the October 2015 public meeting 

and online engagement. 

LHMPO Strategic 
Transportation
Safety Plan 
Phase One:
Public Outreach 
Report

November 20, 2015 

Prepared for: 

Lake Havasu Metropolitan 
Planning Organization 

Prepared by: 

GCI 

On Behalf of: 

AMEC Foster Wheeler 



LHMPO STSP Phase 1 - Public Outreach Report
 

P a g e  | 1 

Table of Contents 
1.0 Overview............................................................................................................................. 2

1.1 Key Issues Identified....................................................................................................... 2

2.0 Online Survey ..................................................................................................................... 3

2.1 Perception of Safety Traveling on Regional Roads ....................................................... 3

2.2 Unsafe Behaviors Observed ......................................................................................... 4

2.3 Other Unsafe Behaviors Observed .............................................................................. 6

2.4 Primary Cause of Crashes............................................................................................. 8

2.5 What Needs to Be Changed to Make It Safer? ........................................................ 9

2.6 Unsafe Locations to Drive, Bicycle, or Walk ............................................................. 10

2.6.1 Drivers ..................................................................................................................... 10

2.6.2 Pedestrians ............................................................................................................ 11

2.6.3 Bicyclists ................................................................................................................. 11

2.7 Respondent Demographics ....................................................................................... 12

3.0 Public Meeting Summary ............................................................................................... 13

3.1 Overview....................................................................................................................... 13

3.2 Meeting Format............................................................................................................ 13

3.3 Graffiti Wall.................................................................................................................... 14

3.4 Preferred Strategies ..................................................................................................... 15

3.5 Crash Location Maps .................................................................................................. 15

3.6 Questions/Comments ................................................................................................. 16

3.7 Meeting Evaluation ..................................................................................................... 16

4.0 Public Outreach Notification ......................................................................................... 18

Appendix ..................................................................................................................................... 19



LHMPO STSP Phase 1 - Public Outreach Report
 

P a g e  | 2 

1.0 Overview 
A public outreach program was conducted in September and October 2015 to support the data 
collection phase for the Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Safety Plan (STSP) and help 
better understand the locations where community members feel unsafe traveling on local 
roadways in the region, the unsafe behaviors residents are observing on roadways and factors 
they perceive are causing crashes, as well as what they believe is most important in reducing 
crashes. This input will be used to help identify action areas the community should focus on to 
improve transportation safety. 

A total of 231 community members participated in outreach activities, which included: 

A public meeting on October 8, 2015 (26 participants) 
An online safety survey conducted  in September and October 2015 (205 participants) 

More details about these activities are provided below. 

1.1 Key Issues Identified

Residents generally believe the roadways in the region are safe for drivers. However 
they don’t believe roads are safe for other more vulnerable users, such as pedestrians, 
bicyclists, the elderly, and disabled. 

Distracted driving – primarily cell phone usage – is viewed as a primary factor in 
crashes. Other key factors cited include: speeding, elderly drivers, impaired drivers, 
reckless or aggressive drivers, and failure to stop/yield at signals and stop signs.  

Community members believe additional enforcement is the best strategy to make the 
roads safer. More bike lanes and pedestrian connections signal improvements, driver 
education, and updating laws to ban texting and require more frequent driver testing 
are also believed to be important in reducing the number of crashes. 

Residents feel most unsafe on highways and major arterial roadways. Safety issues in 
school zones were also frequently mentioned as a concern. 

 



LHMPO STSP Phase 1 - Public Outreach Report
 

P a g e  | 3 

2.0 Online Survey 
An online survey of community members in the Lake Havasu region was conducted to better 
understand the unsafe behaviors observed on roadways, perceived unsafe locations to travel in 
the area by various modes. 

The survey was conducted between September 22 and November 3, 2015.  A total of 205 survey 
responses were received.  Survey responses are summarized in this report.  A copy of the 
survey results are also appended to this document. 

2.1 Perception of Safety Traveling on Regional Roads

Resident generally feel safe traveling in the region, with 68% indicating they feel safe or very 
safe doing so, and 32% indicating they feel unsafe or very unsafe. 

Residents believe the streets are relatively safe for drivers, with 79% of respondents indicating 
they believe the roads are safe or very safe.  However, residents don’t believe roads are safe 
for more vulnerable users, including bicyclists (77% unsafe/very unsafe), elderly or the 
disabled (64% unsafe/very unsafe), and pedestrians (58% unsafe/very unsafe).  Residents are 
split on whether motorcyclists are safe or unsafe on local roads (51% said they are unsafe/very 
unsafe and 48% said they are safe/very safe). 

 

 

3.5% 

28.7% 

57.9% 

9.9% 

How safe do you feel traveling 
through the Lake Havasu region? 

Very Unsafe

Unsafe

Safe

Very Safe

Figure 1. Perception of Safety in Region



LHMPO STSP Phase 1 - Public Outreach Report
 

P a g e  | 4 

  

2.2 Unsafe Behaviors Observed

Residents indicated they observe the following unsafe behaviors most frequently: 

Texting or talking on cell phone (83% often and 15% occasionally observed) 
Speeding (71% often and 28% occasionally observed)  
Failure to signal a turn (63% often and 32% occasionally observed) 
Not stopping completely at stop signs (61% often and 34% occasionally observed) 

 

0

50

100

150

200

250
D

ri
ve

rs

Pe
de

st
ri

an
s

Bi
cy

cl
is

ts

M
ot

or
cy

cl
is

ts

El
de

rl
y 

an
d/

or
di

sa
bl

ed
pe

rs
on

s

How safe is it on the streets for the following 
people? 

Very
Unsafe
Unsafe

Safe

Very Safe

Figure 2. Perception of Safety by User Type



LHMPO STSP Phase 1 - Public Outreach Report
 

P a g e  | 5 

 

 

0

50

100

150

200

250

D
ru

nk
 o

r d
ru

gg
ed

 d
ri

vi
ng

Te
xt

in
g 

or
 ta

lk
in

g 
on

 c
el

l p
ho

ne

Sp
ee

di
ng

N
ot

 s
to

pp
in

g 
co

m
pl

et
el

y 
at

 s
to

p 
si

gn
s

N
ot

 y
ie

ld
in

g 
to

 o
th

er
 c

ar
s,

 b
ic

yc
le

s…

Sp
ee

di
ng

 o
r p

as
si

ng
 in

 s
ch

oo
l z

on
es

Ill
eg

al
 tu

rn
s

Ta
ilg

at
in

g/
fo

llo
w

in
g 

to
o 

cl
os

el
y

Fa
ilu

re
 to

 s
ig

na
l a

 tu
rn

Re
ck

le
ss

 (c
ar

el
es

s)
 d

ri
vi

ng

N
ot

 s
to

pp
in

g 
fo

r a
 re

d 
lig

ht

Pa
ss

in
g 

ill
eg

al
ly

 (o
n 

hi
ll 

or
 c

ur
ve

,…

D
ri

vi
ng

 to
o 

sl
ow

How frequently have you observed drivers 
doing the following? 

Never

Occasionally

Often

Figure 3. Unsafe Behaviors Observed



LHMPO STSP Phase 1 - Public Outreach Report
 

P a g e  | 6 

2.3 Other Unsafe Behaviors Observed

Inattention 

Not paying attention  
Not just "texting" but actually going into the oncoming lane for extended periods of time 
until someone honks!   
The other hazard is unsecured loads.  There is always debris in the roadways and 
blowing off rigs; especially the landscapers and contractors. 

Speeding 

Speeding on Applewood a big problem.  
95 and Mculloch. On Mculloch, they turn on Mculloch and floor it. It is dangerous for 
my kids in the front yard.  

Reckless/Careless Driving 

I've had more than one driver pass me on the right in crazy and very unsafe places.  
Never mind that it's illegal!  
Cutting corners so tight they are in the on-coming traffic lane  
Cutting in front – often. 
Driving with dog in lap, turning widely as dog blocks view- often. 

Elderly Drivers/Snowbirds 

Old people are completely oblivious. They'll run you right off the road and even when 
you pull up next to them honking the horn they still don't notice.  
A lot of the senior drivers causing traffic a lot, driving 15-20 in 25-35 zones which causes 
tailgating.  
The snowbirds cause 85% of accidents. 

Bicycling Safety 

Not providing 3-ft passing zone to cyclists 
Crowding bicycles when there isn't a bike lane  
Bicyclists not following rules of the road. 
I thought I'd be able to ride my bike around town in the "bike lanes" - that is a joke.  The 
parked vehicles just mean that you have to weave in and out.  I've almost hit seasoned 
cyclists numerous times due to this early in a.m.; none of us exceeding speed limit, it's 
just flat dangerous conditions = set up for continuous disasters.   
Bicyclists use little caution.  



LHMPO STSP Phase 1 - Public Outreach Report
 

P a g e  | 7 

Sidewalks 

The sidewalks are almost impossible to navigate due to all the obstacles, especially the 
mailboxes.  Very difficult for anyone visually impaired or in wheelchair, even wheeled 
strollers.  The skateboarders cannot use the "lanes" either, they have to continually zag 
out into traffic.  

Roadway Configuration/Geometry 

Blind curve on Rainbow Ave N.  and Beverley Glenn  

Stop Signs/Signals 

Most everyone speeds on the highway but cross traffic turns onto the 95 like it's a side 
street. Side street traffic doesn't stop for stop signs. 
The 4-way stops are ludicrous: evidently most drivers are not aware of protocol; the 
worst are those thinking they are being "polite" and refuse to take their turn.   
When the snowbirds come into town they specifically do not know how to use a 4-way 
stop. This creates jams, clogs intersections, and creates unsafe conditions where drivers 
are uncertain when a car will go or not. 
Not going in order at a stop sign.  
Stopping over the limit line at a light or stop sign. 

Crosswalks 

Not waiting for pedestrians to cross at a stop sign.  
No respect for pedestrians/bicyclists in crosswalk. 

Other 

I just want to note that all of these poor driving habits are evident everywhere people 
drive, not just in Havasu. 
Our PH does the same. 
I have a concern about walking in my neighborhood because there is a man in a truck 
that will pass me several times during my walk every day. He is just driving around 
going nowhere between Acoma, Lake Havasu Avenue, Kiowa, and Havasupai. Mostly 
on San Juan, Baranca, Seabring and Hurricane area. I am not the only one that is 
bothered by him. He has been witnessed between 5 am thru 7am. 

 



LHMPO STSP Phase 1 - Public Outreach Report
 

P a g e  | 8 

2.4 Primary Cause of Crashes

Respondents indicated the following factors are the most common cause of crashes in the 
region.  The most common response was distracted driving, primarily due to cell phone use or 
texting.  Many respondents indicated a combination of factors, such as speeding along with 
driver inattention, contribute to most crashes. 

Distracted Driving/Inattention/Cell Phone Usage (102 comments) 
Speeding (36 responses) 
Elderly Drivers (31 responses) 
Impaired Driving (25 responses) 
Careless/Reckless/Aggressive Driving (17 responses)  
Failure to Stop/Yield at Intersections (15 responses) 
Not Obeying Traffic Laws (9 responses) 
Lack of Driver Education (10 responses) 
Lack of Enforcement (6 responses) 
Youth Drivers (6 responses) 
Signals/Signage/Traffic Control (5 responses) 
Poor Signage (4 responses) 
Visitors (4 responses) 
Inconsistent Travel Speeds (3 responses) 
Lack of adequate sidewalks (3 responses) 
No Bike Path/Lane (3 responses) 
Tailgating (3 responses) 
No Shoulders (2 responses) 
Road Conditions/Configurations (2 responses) 
Roadway Lighting (2 responses) 
Other (4 responses) 

o Confused drivers 
o Lack of public transportation  
o Falling asleep at the wheel for those accidents that happen north and south of the 

city on Hwy 95 
o Very small amount of crashes for population. 

No Opinion  

 

 

 



LHMPO STSP Phase 1 - Public Outreach Report
 

P a g e  | 9 

2.5 What Needs to Be Changed to Make It Safer?

Respondents believe additional enforcement is the top thing the region can do to improve 
safety, followed by improvements for bicyclists and pedestrians, signal or signage 
improvements, and driver education and awareness to change unsafe behaviors. 

Additional enforcement (60 responses) 
New Bike Lanes/Paths (37 responses) 
New Signals/Signage (28 responses) 
More sidewalks/pedestrian paths (26 responses) 
Education/Awareness (23 responses) 
Update Laws/Testing (e.g., driver license renewal, ban on cell phone use/texting) (18 
responses) 
Improve Road Conditions/Maintenance (8 responses) 
Reduce Speed Limits (7 responses) 
Change the Roadway Configuration – e.g., add/reduce lanes (6 responses) 
Improve Street Lighting (6 responses) 
Install Speed Bumps (4 responses) 
Alternate Route/Bypass (3 responses) 
More Public Transportation (2 responses) 
Reflective Gear for Pedestrians and Cyclists (2 responses) 
Increase Speed Limits (1 response) 
Keep Speed Limits Consistent on Highway (1 response) 
Add Shoulders (2 responses) 
Nothing/Unsure (8 responses) 
Other (4 responses) 
o Encourage more development at the edges of town because there's far too much 

winter traffic downtown.  
o Tip line to report aggressive driving. 
o Overpasses at major highway intersections or a highway bypass around the City. 
o A couple of intersections that I would be curious about the accident history are 

95/Maricopa and South Oro Grand, and the intersection of College Street and Lake 
Havasu Avenue (hill makes blind). Those two intersections are the ones that I have 
directed my teen driver to avoid. 

 

 



LHMPO STSP Phase 1 - Public Outreach Report
 

P a g e  | 10 

2.6 Unsafe Locations to Drive, Bicycle, or Walk

At the end of the survey, respondents were able to link to an online map of the Lake Havasu 
region and identify specific locations on the map where they currently feel unsafe driving, 
walking, or riding a bicycle, along with a comment for each location. Respondents could also 
tag comments according to several categories, including a high-accident location, lack of 
appropriate signage, bike path, driveway issue, intersection issue, maintenance issue, 
pedestrian crossing or sidewalk, safety hazard, stop sign/signal, visibility, etc.  A total of 185 
unsafe locations were identified. A map and listing of individual comments for these locations 
(with map coordinates) is included in the report Appendix. 

 

2.6.1 Drivers 

A total of 75 unsafe locations for cars were identified. Comments varied on the reasons for 
lack of safety and included: failure of other drivers to yield/stop at intersections, inadequate 
signage, traffic congestion, speeding, unusual lane markings, too many driveways on major 

Figure 4. Unsafe Locations for Cars, Pedestrians, and Bicyclists



LHMPO STSP Phase 1 - Public Outreach Report
 

P a g e  | 11 

arterials, roadway geometry, poor pavement conditions, speed limits too high, and the need for 
better controlled intersections. 
 
2.6.2 Pedestrians 

A total of 35 unsafe locations for pedestrians were identified. Most comments were related to 
lack of continuous sidewalks or pathways, poor condition of sidewalks or paths, safety of 
children walking to and from school, poor lighting conditions, and unsafe driver behaviors 
particularly at crosswalks (e.g., failure to yield to pedestrians, inattention, speeding, etc.).  
 
2.6.3 Bicyclists 

A total of 74 unsafe locations for bicyclists were identified. Most comments were related to the 
lack of bike lanes/facilities or shoulders and the desire for dedicated bike lanes. Some comments 
related to traffic congestion, lane markings, walls or other sight obstructions, multiple 
driveways, or lack of road maintenance that make travel by bicycle difficult. 
 
Figure 5. Issues Identified on Map

 
Maps of the locations identified and comments are included in the Appendix. 

 



LHMPO STSP Phase 1 - Public Outreach Report
 

P a g e  | 12 

2.7 Respondent Demographics

Survey respondents were generally older residents, with 16% 35-44 years old, 49% 45-64 years 
old, and 21% 65 or older. Fourteen percent of respondents were 34 or younger. Sixty-one 
percent were female and 39% were male. 

 

 

1.0% 3.4% 

9.8% 

16.2% 

25.0% 

24.0% 

13.7% 

6.9% 

Under 16 years old

16-24 years old

25-34 years old

35-44 years old

45-54 years old

55-64 years old

65-74 years old

75 years or older

Figure 7. Respondent Age

39.2% 

60.8% Male Female

Figure 8. Respondent Gender



LHMPO STSP Phase 1 - Public Outreach Report
 

P a g e  | 13 

3.0 Public Meeting Summary 
3.1 Overview 

The meeting was held October 8, 2015, 3:30.–5:30 p.m. at the Lake Havasu Police Station, 2360 
McCulloch Blvd, North, Lake Havasu City. 

The purpose of the meeting was to share information about the purpose of the Strategic 
Transportation Safety Plan and regional crash data, and seek the community’s input on the 
locations they feel unsafe traveling in the Lake Havasu region and their priorities for reducing 
crashes. 

 

3.2 Meeting Format

A series of two consecutive open houses 
and formal presentations were provided to 
accommodate participants’ schedules.  
Attendees arrived and were provided with 
a meeting agenda and evaluation form.  
During the open house portion of the 
meeting, prior to and following the formal 
presentation, attendees were able to visit 
five stations to get information and provide 
their input.  

Station #1 – Crash Location Maps.  Participants could mark locations on large maps of 
the study area where they have observed crashes or where they believe the road is 
unsafe  
Station #2 – Impaired Driving. Participants could try on goggles that simulate driving 
while impaired.  
Station #3 – Nevada DOT Video. An educational video was shown about people’s 
perceptions about the importance of road safety and reducing fatalities among the 
general population versus their own family. 
Station #4 - Graffiti Wall. Participants could write what they would personally do to be 
safer when traveling on local roads, and what they would like others to do. 
Station #5 – Kids Table/Survey.  Participants could take online or printed versions of the 
survey study, if they had not already done so.  Coloring supplies were also provided for 
kids. 

Residents listen to the meeting presentation.



LHMPO STSP Phase 1 - Public Outreach Report
 

P a g e  | 14 

The project team gave a presentation provide information about the purpose of the Strategic 
Transportation Safety Plan, crash data statistics for the region, and potential strategies to reduce 
crashes focusing on the four E’s (Engineering, Education, Enforcement, and Emergency 
Response).  

During the presentation, 
participants were asked a series 
of questions about their 
awareness of and tolerance to 
crashes in the LHMPO region. 

 

3.3 Graffiti Wall

The following comments were 
placed on the graffiti wall. 

What will you do? 
I promise not to text and 
drive 
Wear helmet when I ride bicycle 
Drive slower at high school 
I promise to walk my bike across crosswalks 
I promise not to answer cell phone! Drive. 

 
Make our streets safer 

Add sidewalks near schools 
Multi use non-motorized lanes 
Remove mailboxes from major thoroughfare sidewalks 
Mandatory driving evaluation every X years 
Proper bike lanes 
Should RVs be towing large boats? 
Encourage homeowners to clean debris in front of their homes –Ped/Cyclist 
Improve pedestrian crossings 
Mandate trash can removal after pickup 

 
 

Attendees try special beer goggles to see how drinking 
impairs driving. LHPD officers administered field sobriety 
tests while residents were wearing the googles. 



LHMPO STSP Phase 1 - Public Outreach Report
 

P a g e  | 15 

What should others do? 
Pay attention, no distracted 
driving 
Not text and drive 
Put down your phone and drive 
No phones, food, makeup… while 
driving 
Motorcyclists should wear 
helmets and proper attire 

 

 

3.4 Preferred Strategies

Attendees were also given three coins 
and asked to place them in boxes of 
strategies they believe would make the 
most difference in reducing crashes in the Lake Havasu region.  The following responses were 
recorded:  

Install bicycle/multi-use lanes where appropriate   16 
Conduct Safe Routes to School assessments    10 
Install enhanced pedestrian crossings where needed  7 
Conduct targeted alcohol and drug impairment checkpoints 6 
Install sidewalks where needed     6 
Safe driving campaign for elderly and snow birds   6 
Distracted driving campaign in high schools    6 
Install traffic signal pre-emption for emergency vehicles  3 
Adjust traffic signal timing and coordination   3 
Conduct targeted speed enforcement, e.g. in school zones  3 
Consolidate and/or remove driveways    1 

 

3.5 Crash Location Maps 

The following unsafe locations and other comments were provided on the maps: 

Southbound Javelina 
Blind spot at Javelina 
Need No Parking Zone in the  area so no obstruction in bike lane 

Residents write on a graffiti wall to say what they 
would commit to doing to be safer and what they 
would like others to do.



LHMPO STSP Phase 1 - Public Outreach Report
 

P a g e  | 16 

MPO has bike lane route map 
[The references to ‘proximate intersections’ refer to the fact that intersections formed by 
the streets that are parallel with SR95 are extremely close to the SR95 intersections.  The 
crash data seem to support the characteristic that the proximate intersections cause 
driver confusion.] 
Mulberry [should be Maricopa] is not a ‘true’ street.  It was the access road during 
construction of SR95.  Locals began using it regularly, and it later became signalized. 
Riviera at Pima – Bike (blind corner); needs sign and/or mirror 
Acoma Street width is too narrow 
5-lane section, no bike lanes 
Potential . . . widen street 6’ each side; add bike lanes 
Full length at Acoma 
Remove sidewalks 
Wide 8-10’ path (surfaced) each side 
 
 

3.6 Questions/Comments

Were the fatalities Arizona residents or 
out of town visitors? 
Pedestrian close calls on right turn on 
red light and driver running red light 
Is Drivers Ed required in schools? 
Strategies: 

o Red light cameras—reduced 
numbers 

o Pass legislation banning use of cell phones while driving 
o Keep debris off the road 
o Helmets for bicycles and motorcycles 
o Concern about condition of vans being used for shuttle services (bad times—

black vans not white) 
 

3.7 Meeting Evaluation

A total of 17 participants returned a meeting evaluation form. The following table summarizes 
those responses.  The event was rated as excellent by 15 attendees. Most agreed the meeting was 
a valuable use of their time, open house stations were fun and informative, they were able to 

Attendees drop coins in a cup to indicate their 
priorities for safety improvements.



LHMPO STSP Phase 1 - Public Outreach Report
 

P a g e  | 17 

fully participate and share ideas, their input will make a difference in the development of the 
STSP, and they have a better understanding of the impact of crashes on the community, 

What was the best thing about today? 

Presenters did a great job 
Awareness for pedestrian and cyclist is a priority and a necessity 
Brought up a lot of ideas that had not previously occurred to me 
That there is interest in improving safety on our streets for bicycles, pedestrians and cars 
That there was an interest in improving community for alternate transportation 
Very productive use of statistics 
Good info 
Stats 
Allowing our input to help solve a problem 

 

Other Comments:  

A little paint will go a long way in reminding drivers that there are people sharing the 
roads using other forms of transportation 
The crash map was excellent 
Unsure if expected outcome/results of this meeting from organizers 
Honestly surprised by low public attendance 
Would like to know what strategies will be implemented and when (timeframe) 
This city is not bike friendly 
No turn on right signals 
Slow zone on Acoma near golf course and senior center 
I’m 16 and the event was interesting for all age groups 
Vicki Warner via email to Jean Knight:  

o I gave up trying to pinpoint safety issues as it was way too cumbersome the way 
the program is set up = each individual icon takes you through numerous time-
consuming steps. 

o At the meeting, I again gave up trying to add "pinpoints" to the maps as the 
maps were a congregating place for discussion and not even accessible without 
physically trying to "move someone over".  There were only a few citizens from 
the "community" so if the meeting had been more crowded it would have been 
impossible to even view the maps adequately.  So, we just "discussed." 

o Those few of us that talked about the meeting afterward all had same 
thought:  we came for info, and it seemed there was not much info being put out 
so basically, we were confused as to the intent of the meeting itself. 
 



LHMPO STSP Phase 1 - Public Outreach Report
 

P a g e  | 18 

o We all believe this is very important for the community and hope something 
moves forward with "Multi-Use Non-Motorized" lanes (not just designated "Bike 
Lanes" unless they are also to be considered "Multi-Use Alternate Transportation 
Lanes"). 

4.0 Public Outreach Notification 
The following methods were used to notify residents about the public meeting and online 
survey: 

500 postcards were distributed at businesses and public buildings.  
Flyers were also distributed via email. 
A news release about the survey was distributed to local media.  Articles about the 
study and opportunities for residents to participate were printed in the Havasu News on 
9/18/15 and in the News-Herald on 10/22/15. 
A link to the survey was posted on the LHMPO, City, and other local websites. 
Three emails were sent to 110 local community organizations and key stakeholders to 
ask them to forward to their members. 
Information about the survey was posted on local social media. 
The survey was available online and in a printed format at the October 8 and October 22 
Regional Transportation Plan public meetings. 

  



LHMPO STSP Phase 1 - Public Outreach Report
 

P a g e  | 19 

Appendix

Online Survey Questionnaire

Survey - All Open Ended Responses

Map Locations and Comments

Public Meeting Handout

Public Meeting Presentation

Public Meeting Evaluation

Public Meeting Attendees

Public Meeting Sign-In Sheets

News Release

Havasu News Article 

Flyer

Postcard



Lake Havasu Regional Safety SurveyLake Havasu Regional Safety SurveyLake Havasu Regional Safety SurveyLake Havasu Regional Safety Survey

Welcome

Do you feel safe driving in the Lake Havasu Region area?

Is it safe to ride your bicycle?

Are you concerned about walking in the community?

The Lake Havasu MPO is preparing a transportation safety plan and needs your input on the unsafe travel
behaviors you have witnessed and the locations in the region where you feel unsafe to travel.

1. How frequently have you observed drivers doing the following?
Never Occasionally Often

Drunk or drugged driving

Texting or talking on cell phone

Speeding

Not stopping completely at stop signs

Not yielding to other cars, bicycles and pedestrians

Speeding or passing in school zones

Illegal turns

Tailgating/following too closely

Failure to signal a turn

Reckless (careless) driving

Not stopping for a red light

Passing illegally (on hill or curve, across double yellow line, etc.)

Driving too slow

2. How safe is it on the streets for the following people?
Very Unsafe Unsafe Safe Very Safe

Drivers

Pedestrians

Bicyclists

Motorcyclists

Elderly and/or disabled persons

Other (please specify)



Lake Havasu Regional Safety SurveyLake Havasu Regional Safety SurveyLake Havasu Regional Safety SurveyLake Havasu Regional Safety Survey
3. How safe do you feel traveling through the Lake Havasu region?

Very Unsafe

Unsafe

Safe

Very Safe



Lake Havasu Regional Safety SurveyLake Havasu Regional Safety SurveyLake Havasu Regional Safety SurveyLake Havasu Regional Safety Survey

Unsafe Places to Drive, Bicycle or Walk

4. What do you think is the primary cause of crashes in the Lake Havasu Region?

5. What do you think needs to be changed to make it safer to travel in the Lake Havasu
Region?

6. What is your age?

7. What is your gender?

Next step is to identify unsafe locations on a map of the Lake Havasu Region. Click on the link below.

You can add as many locations to the map as you want. When you are finished you can close the window!

Under 16 years old

16-24 years old

25-34 years old

35-44 years old

45-54 years old

55-64 years old

65-74 years old

75 years or older

Male

Female

Other (please specify)



Lake Havasu Regional Safety SurveyLake Havasu Regional Safety SurveyLake Havasu Regional Safety SurveyLake Havasu Regional Safety Survey
Click here to identify unsafe travel locations in the Lake Havasu Region.

Have more to share? Come to the public meeting!

Thursday, October 8, 3:30 - 5:30 pm
Lake Havasu City Police Facility Meeting Room
2360 McCulloch Blvd., North
Lake Havasu City, AZ

Thank you for your participation. Be sure to share the link with your friends and colleagues and ask them to participate.

If you have any questions regarding this study, please call Jean Knight, Manager, Lake Havasu MPO, knightj@lhcaz.gov, 928-453-2824.

































12

68

15

160

30

1

2 3

1

2 3

4 5 6

7 8 9

Index Map

Pa
th

: G
:\I

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e\
Tr

an
s\

P
ro

je
ct

s\
20

15
\3

72
01

55
00

8 
La

ke
 H

av
as

u 
M

P
O

 S
af

et
y 

Pl
an

\0
6-

G
IS

\0
1-

M
XD

\C
ra

sh
 M

ap
s\

LH
M

P
O

_C
om

m
en

ts
Fo

rR
ep

or
t.m

xd

Legend

")24 Unsafe for Bicycles

")28 Unsafe for Cars

")7 Unsafe for Pedestrians

The map shown here has been created with all
due and reasonable care and is strictly for use
with Amec Foster Wheeler Project Number
37-2015-5008.  This map has not been certified
by a licensed land surveyor,and any third party
use of this map comes without warranties of any
kind.  Amec Foster Wheeler assumes no liability,
direct or indirect, whatsoever for any such third
party or unintended use.

Job No.
PM:
Date:
Scale:

37-2015-5008
MB
11/10/2015
1" = 0.25 miles ±

0 0.25 0.5
Miles

LHMPO 
Safety Plan Outreach Report

Lake Havasu Safety Transportation Plan
Lake Havasu, Arizona

FIGURE
1



11

58

72

74

103

112

114

115

8

104
158

111

113

123

1

2
3

4 5

1

2 3

4 5 6

7 8 9

Index Map

Pa
th

: G
:\I

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e\
Tr

an
s\

P
ro

je
ct

s\
20

15
\3

72
01

55
00

8 
La

ke
 H

av
as

u 
M

P
O

 S
af

et
y 

Pl
an

\0
6-

G
IS

\0
1-

M
XD

\C
ra

sh
 M

ap
s\

LH
M

P
O

_C
om

m
en

ts
Fo

rR
ep

or
t.m

xd

Legend

")24 Unsafe for Bicycles

")28 Unsafe for Cars

")7 Unsafe for Pedestrians

The map shown here has been created with all
due and reasonable care and is strictly for use
with Amec Foster Wheeler Project Number
37-2015-5008.  This map has not been certified
by a licensed land surveyor,and any third party
use of this map comes without warranties of any
kind.  Amec Foster Wheeler assumes no liability,
direct or indirect, whatsoever for any such third
party or unintended use.

Job No.
PM:
Date:
Scale:

37-2015-5008
MB
11/10/2015
1" = 0.25 miles ±

0 0.25 0.5
Miles

LHMPO 
Safety Plan Outreach Report

Lake Havasu Safety Transportation Plan
Lake Havasu, Arizona

FIGURE
1



94

115

1

2
3

4 5 6

1

2 3

4 5 6

7 8 9

Index Map

Pa
th

: G
:\I

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e\
Tr

an
s\

P
ro

je
ct

s\
20

15
\3

72
01

55
00

8 
La

ke
 H

av
as

u 
M

P
O

 S
af

et
y 

Pl
an

\0
6-

G
IS

\0
1-

M
XD

\C
ra

sh
 M

ap
s\

LH
M

P
O

_C
om

m
en

ts
Fo

rR
ep

or
t.m

xd

Legend

")24 Unsafe for Bicycles

")28 Unsafe for Cars

")7 Unsafe for Pedestrians

The map shown here has been created with all
due and reasonable care and is strictly for use
with Amec Foster Wheeler Project Number
37-2015-5008.  This map has not been certified
by a licensed land surveyor,and any third party
use of this map comes without warranties of any
kind.  Amec Foster Wheeler assumes no liability,
direct or indirect, whatsoever for any such third
party or unintended use.

Job No.
PM:
Date:
Scale:

37-2015-5008
MB
11/10/2015
1" = 0.25 miles ±

0 0.25 0.5
Miles

LHMPO 
Safety Plan Outreach Report

Lake Havasu Safety Transportation Plan
Lake Havasu, Arizona

FIGURE
1



13

21

22

2324

25

26

27 38

39

40

44
46

49

59

66

69

74

75

76

100

101

106

107

109

138

140

179

182
183

184

10

28

29

45

47

50

52

65

7881

102

105

110

127

141

142

143

146

147

152

153

156

157

165
169

171

172

173
174

176

48

117 118

155

180

2 3

4
5

7 8

1

2 3

4 5 6

7 8 9

Index Map

Pa
th

: G
:\I

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e\
Tr

an
s\

P
ro

je
ct

s\
20

15
\3

72
01

55
00

8 
La

ke
 H

av
as

u 
M

P
O

 S
af

et
y 

Pl
an

\0
6-

G
IS

\0
1-

M
XD

\C
ra

sh
 M

ap
s\

LH
M

P
O

_C
om

m
en

ts
Fo

rR
ep

or
t.m

xd

Legend

")24 Unsafe for Bicycles

")28 Unsafe for Cars

")7 Unsafe for Pedestrians

The map shown here has been created with all
due and reasonable care and is strictly for use
with Amec Foster Wheeler Project Number
37-2015-5008.  This map has not been certified
by a licensed land surveyor,and any third party
use of this map comes without warranties of any
kind.  Amec Foster Wheeler assumes no liability,
direct or indirect, whatsoever for any such third
party or unintended use.

Job No.
PM:
Date:
Scale:

37-2015-5008
MB
11/10/2015
1" = 0.25 miles ±

0 0.25 0.5
Miles

LHMPO 
Safety Plan Outreach Report

Lake Havasu Safety Transportation Plan
Lake Havasu, Arizona

FIGURE
1



20

21

22

31

32 33

38

39

51

53

55

56

79

87

90

92

95

107

128

138

178

179

9

14

19

64

82
84

86

89

125

126

127

143

144

145

153

154

165

1

16
17

18

80

83

85

88

91

108

116

119

122

124

139

162
164 170

2 3

4
5

6

7 8 9

1

2 3

4 5 6

7 8 9

Index Map

Pa
th

: G
:\I

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e\
Tr

an
s\

P
ro

je
ct

s\
20

15
\3

72
01

55
00

8 
La

ke
 H

av
as

u 
M

P
O

 S
af

et
y 

Pl
an

\0
6-

G
IS

\0
1-

M
XD

\C
ra

sh
 M

ap
s\

LH
M

P
O

_C
om

m
en

ts
Fo

rR
ep

or
t.m

xd

Legend

")24 Unsafe for Bicycles

")28 Unsafe for Cars

")7 Unsafe for Pedestrians

The map shown here has been created with all
due and reasonable care and is strictly for use
with Amec Foster Wheeler Project Number
37-2015-5008.  This map has not been certified
by a licensed land surveyor,and any third party
use of this map comes without warranties of any
kind.  Amec Foster Wheeler assumes no liability,
direct or indirect, whatsoever for any such third
party or unintended use.

Job No.
PM:
Date:
Scale:

37-2015-5008
MB
11/10/2015
1" = 0.25 miles ±

0 0.25 0.5
Miles

LHMPO 
Safety Plan Outreach Report

Lake Havasu Safety Transportation Plan
Lake Havasu, Arizona

FIGURE
1



125

122

124

3

5
6

8 9

1

2 3

4 5 6

7 8 9

Index Map

Pa
th

: G
:\I

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e\
Tr

an
s\

P
ro

je
ct

s\
20

15
\3

72
01

55
00

8 
La

ke
 H

av
as

u 
M

P
O

 S
af

et
y 

Pl
an

\0
6-

G
IS

\0
1-

M
XD

\C
ra

sh
 M

ap
s\

LH
M

P
O

_C
om

m
en

ts
Fo

rR
ep

or
t.m

xd

Legend

")24 Unsafe for Bicycles

")28 Unsafe for Cars

")7 Unsafe for Pedestrians

The map shown here has been created with all
due and reasonable care and is strictly for use
with Amec Foster Wheeler Project Number
37-2015-5008.  This map has not been certified
by a licensed land surveyor,and any third party
use of this map comes without warranties of any
kind.  Amec Foster Wheeler assumes no liability,
direct or indirect, whatsoever for any such third
party or unintended use.

Job No.
PM:
Date:
Scale:

37-2015-5008
MB
11/10/2015
1" = 0.25 miles ±

0 0.25 0.5
Miles

LHMPO 
Safety Plan Outreach Report

Lake Havasu Safety Transportation Plan
Lake Havasu, Arizona

FIGURE
1



6

22

23

43

44
46

61

99

42

45

62

97

98

146

147

149

153

159

161

165

168

169

181

7

41

60

63

96

148

4 5

7
8

1

2 3

4 5 6

7 8 9

Index Map

Pa
th

: G
:\I

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e\
Tr

an
s\

P
ro

je
ct

s\
20

15
\3

72
01

55
00

8 
La

ke
 H

av
as

u 
M

P
O

 S
af

et
y 

Pl
an

\0
6-

G
IS

\0
1-

M
XD

\C
ra

sh
 M

ap
s\

LH
M

P
O

_C
om

m
en

ts
Fo

rR
ep

or
t.m

xd

Legend

")24 Unsafe for Bicycles

")28 Unsafe for Cars

")7 Unsafe for Pedestrians

The map shown here has been created with all
due and reasonable care and is strictly for use
with Amec Foster Wheeler Project Number
37-2015-5008.  This map has not been certified
by a licensed land surveyor,and any third party
use of this map comes without warranties of any
kind.  Amec Foster Wheeler assumes no liability,
direct or indirect, whatsoever for any such third
party or unintended use.

Job No.
PM:
Date:
Scale:

37-2015-5008
MB
11/10/2015
1" = 0.25 miles ±

0 0.25 0.5
Miles

LHMPO 
Safety Plan Outreach Report

Lake Havasu Safety Transportation Plan
Lake Havasu, Arizona

FIGURE
1



22

34

35

36

37

51
55

67

71

133

137

163

5

120

121

129

130

131

132

134

135

9

150

151

153

165

166

167

175

177

77

136

4 5 6

7
8

9

1

2 3

4 5 6

7 8 9

Index Map

Pa
th

: G
:\I

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e\
Tr

an
s\

P
ro

je
ct

s\
20

15
\3

72
01

55
00

8 
La

ke
 H

av
as

u 
M

P
O

 S
af

et
y 

Pl
an

\0
6-

G
IS

\0
1-

M
XD

\C
ra

sh
 M

ap
s\

LH
M

P
O

_C
om

m
en

ts
Fo

rR
ep

or
t.m

xd

Legend

")24 Unsafe for Bicycles

")28 Unsafe for Cars

")7 Unsafe for Pedestrians

The map shown here has been created with all
due and reasonable care and is strictly for use
with Amec Foster Wheeler Project Number
37-2015-5008.  This map has not been certified
by a licensed land surveyor,and any third party
use of this map comes without warranties of any
kind.  Amec Foster Wheeler assumes no liability,
direct or indirect, whatsoever for any such third
party or unintended use.

Job No.
PM:
Date:
Scale:

37-2015-5008
MB
11/10/2015
1" = 0.25 miles ±

0 0.25 0.5
Miles

LHMPO 
Safety Plan Outreach Report

Lake Havasu Safety Transportation Plan
Lake Havasu, Arizona

FIGURE
1



54

57

67

70

73

93

2

3 4

5 6

8
9

1

2 3

4 5 6

7 8 9

Index Map

Pa
th

: G
:\I

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e\
Tr

an
s\

P
ro

je
ct

s\
20

15
\3

72
01

55
00

8 
La

ke
 H

av
as

u 
M

P
O

 S
af

et
y 

Pl
an

\0
6-

G
IS

\0
1-

M
XD

\C
ra

sh
 M

ap
s\

LH
M

P
O

_C
om

m
en

ts
Fo

rR
ep

or
t.m

xd

Legend

")24 Unsafe for Bicycles

")28 Unsafe for Cars

")7 Unsafe for Pedestrians

The map shown here has been created with all
due and reasonable care and is strictly for use
with Amec Foster Wheeler Project Number
37-2015-5008.  This map has not been certified
by a licensed land surveyor,and any third party
use of this map comes without warranties of any
kind.  Amec Foster Wheeler assumes no liability,
direct or indirect, whatsoever for any such third
party or unintended use.

Job No.
PM:
Date:
Scale:

37-2015-5008
MB
11/10/2015
1" = 0.25 miles ±

0 0.25 0.5
Miles

LHMPO 
Safety Plan Outreach Report

Lake Havasu Safety Transportation Plan
Lake Havasu, Arizona

FIGURE
1























Are Your 

Streets SAFE?

3:30 - 5:30 pm 

Participate in the Open House Stations

 • Crash Locations 

  –  Learn where crashes happen in the Lake Havasu 

Region

  – Add locations where you have witnessed a crash

 • Impaired Driving

  –  See what it is like to drive under the influence of 

alcohol or marijuana

 • Zero Fatalities Video

  –  Watch a video on traffic fatalities produced by 

Nevada Department of Transportation

 • Graffiti Wall

  –  Tell us what you are willing to do or what you think 

should be done to reduce the number of crashes

 • Safety Survey

  –  If you haven’t taken the online survey, please 

complete a survey

 • Kid’s Table

  – Coloring books and crayons for the kids

Participate In A Presentation at 4:00 or 5:00 pm

 •  Learn more about the cause of crashes in the Lake 

Havasu region

 •  Help prioritize potential strategies to reduce the 

number of crashes

Complete a meeting evaluation before you leave

 • Evaluation on back of this page

 • Leave in box on survey table

Thank You for Your Participation.

For more information on the Study,  
Please Contact:
Jean Knight

Manager

Lake Havasu Metropolitan

Planning Organization

900 London Bridge Road – Bldg. E

Lake Havasu City, AZ 86404

(928) 453-2824

KnightJ@lhcaz.gov 

Lake Havasu Region 

Strategic Transportation Safety Plan 

Public Meeting

WELCOME!



11/6/2015

1

Lake Havasu MPO
Strategic Transportation Safety Plan

Nevada DOT Video

WELCOME
Jean Knight, Manager, Lake Havasu MPO

Quick Survey:

• How many crashes do you think happen in 
the Lake Havasu region each year?

• How many people die from crashes in a 
year?

• What is the acceptable number of fatalities 
in a year?

Number of Crashes

• LHMPO region crashes for past 10 years 
(2005 – 2014):
• 6,275 crashes

– 30 fatal crashes
– 694 incapacitating injury crashes
– 747 non-incapacitating injury crashes
– 512 possible injury crashes
– 4,292 no injury crashes

Crash Data Analysis

• Most frequent crash types: 
– 26% rear-end
– 22% single vehicle
– 21% angle
– 12% sideswipe same direction
– 6% left-turn



11/6/2015

2

Crash Data Analysis

• Most frequent fatal crash types: 
– 40% pedestrian and bicyclist
– 23% single vehicle
– 13% head-on
– 7% angle
– 7% sideswipe opposite direction

Fatal Crash Comparison 
to State

Speeding
• 33% LHMPO Region, 38% State
Impaired Driving
• 63% LHMPO Region, 34% State
Distracted Driving
• 17% LHMPO Region, 15% State
Didn’t Use Seat Belt
• 45% LHMPO Region, 49% State

Fatal Crash Comparison 
to State

Driver Age > 64 years old 
• 30% LHMPO Region, 15% State
Driver Age < 25 years old
• 23% LHMPO Region, 30% State
Pedestrian Fatalities
• 30% LHMPO Region, 15% State
Bicyclist Fatalities
• 6% LHMPO Region, 2% State

POTENTIAL STRATEGIES
How can we reduce the number of crashes?

Education

• Initiate distracted driving campaign in high 
schools

• Initiate a safe driving campaign targeted 
for elderly and snow birds

Enforcement

• Conduct targeted speed enforcement, e.g. 
in school zones

• Conduct targeted alcohol and drug 
impairment checkpoints



11/6/2015

3

Engineering

• Protected bicycle lanes 
• Enhanced pedestrian crossings
• Sidewalks 
• Safe Routes to School assessments
• Adjust traffic signal timing and 

coordination
• Consolidate and/or remove driveways 

near intersections

Emergency Response

• Install traffic signal pre-emption for 
emergency vehicles

• OTHER STRATEGIES?

PREFERRED STRATEGIES

Which strategies do you think will make a 
difference in Lake Havasu Region?

Strategies

• Select the 3 strategies you think will make 
the most difference
– Put one of your gold coins in each of those 3 

boxes

Thank You!



Lake Havasu MPO STSP Public Meeting Summary  P a g e  | 1 

Lake Havasu MPO STSP 
Public Meeting Evaluation 
Date:  October 8, 2015 

Time:  3:30 P.M.–5:30 P.M. 

Location:  2360 McCulloch Blvd, North, Lake Havasu City 

 

A total of 17 participants returned a meeting evaluation form. The following table summarizes those 
responses. 

Please rate your agreement to the following statements. 
 
 Strongly 

Agree Agree Disagree Strongly 
Disagree 

No 
Opinion 

The meeting was a valuable use of my time. 3 12 2 0 0 

The open house stations were fun and 
informative. 4 12 0 0 1 

I have a better understanding of the impact of 
crashes on the community. 6 8 2 0 1 

I was able to fully participate and share my 
ideas. 10 6 0 0 1 

I feel my input will make a difference in the 
development of the STSP. 5 7 1 1 3 

The facilitator did a good job in keeping the 
group on track and on time. 7 10 0 0 0 

The food and meeting facility were excellent. 9 4 0 0 4 

The overall event was excellent. 10 5 2 0 0 
  

What was the best thing about today? 

• Presenters did a great job 
• Awareness for pedestrian and cyclist is a priority and a necessity 
• Brought up a lot of ideas that had not previously occurred to me 
• That there is interest in improving safety on our streets for bicycles, pedestrians and cars 
• That there was an interest in improving community for alternate transportation 
• Very productive use of statistics 
• Good info 
• Stats 
• Allowing our input to help solve a problem 



Lake Havasu MPO STSP Public Meeting Summary  P a g e  | 2 

Other Comments:  

• A little paint will go a long way in reminding drivers that there are people sharing the roads 
using other forms of transportation 

• The crash map was excellent 
• Unsure if expected outcome/results of this meeting from organizers 
• Honestly surprised by low public attendance 
• Would like to know what strategies will be implemented and when (timeframe) 
• This city is not bike friendly 
• No turn on right signals 
• Slow zone on Acoma near golf course and senior center 
• I’m 16 and the event was interesting for all age groups 
• Vicki Warner via email to Jean Knight:  

o I gave up trying to pinpoint safety issues as it was way too cumbersome the way the 
program is set up = each individual icon takes you through numerous time-consuming 
steps. 

o At the meeting, I again gave up trying to add "pinpoints" to the maps as the maps were 
a congregating place for discussion and not even accessible without physically trying to 
"move someone over".  There were only a few citizens from the "community" so if the 
meeting had been more crowded it would have been impossible to even view the maps 
adequately.  So, we just "discussed." 

o Those few of us that talked about the meeting afterward all had same thought:  we 
came for info, and it seemed there was not much info being put out so basically, we 
were confused as to the intent of the meeting itself. 

o We all believe this is very important for the community and hope something moves 
forward with "Multi-Use Non-Motorized" lanes (not just designated "Bike Lanes" unless 
they are also to be considered "Multi-Use Alternate Transportation Lanes"). 



LHMPO STSP Phase 1 - Public Outreach Report 
 

P a g e | 1

October 8, 2015 Public Meeting Attendees 

A total of 26 people signed in to the meeting. 
 

Don Callahan, MPO Board 
Charlie Cassens, LHC City Manager 
Greg Froslie, LHC CSD Director 
Albert Garcia, Resident 
Terrie Haas, LHC Fire Department 
Sarah Hall, Mohave County Supervisor Office  
Buster Johnson, Mohave County Supervisor 
Bobby Keirns, LHUSD Transportation 
Steven Latoski, Mohave County Public Works   
Scott McIntyre, ASU 
Dale Miller, Rick Engineering 
Steve Miller, LHC 
Luke Morris, CSD Lake Havasu City  
Dennis Mueller, LHC Fire Chief 
John Masden, Cyclist Karen Powell, Resident 
Kassidy Powell, Resident 
Jim Rosensweet, Trails Advisory Committee 
Bill Sambel, LHC 
Stuart Schmeling, CSD Lake Havasu City 
Sylvia Spiegel, Resident 
Mitch Tarr, Resident 
Vickie Warner, Resident, Sara Park Trails Assoc. & Lake Havasu Paddlers 
Rich Wells, LHC Engineering 
Susan Wolfe, Resident & Lake Havasu Paddlers 
Aggie Wolter, LHUSD  
Darryl Wrigt, Resident 

 













 

Lake Havasu Metropolitan Planning Organization (LHMPO) 
900 London Bridge Road – Bldg. E 
Lake Havasu City, AZ 86404 
Contact: Jean Knight (928) 453-2824  KnightJ@lhcaz.gov  

9/21/15 – For Immediate Release 

Residents asked to identify unsafe roads for driving, walking and biking 
Results will help determine projects to include in transportation plan 

Lake Havasu, Ariz. – Transportation officials are asking Lake Havasu area residents to attend a public meeting 

and take an online survey to identify locations where they feel unsafe driving, walking and biking, as well as the 

risky behaviors they see most often by others.   

A public meeting to seek the community’s input will be held Thursday, Oct. 8 from 3:30-5:30 p.m. at the Lake 

Havasu City Police Facility, 2360 McCulloch Blvd., North.  

An online safety survey is available at https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/Havasu_Safety. 

The results will be used to determine future safety improvement projects as part of a transportation safety plan 

for the Lake Havasu region.  

The transportation safety plan is being conducted by the Lake Havasu Metropolitan Planning Organization 

(LHMPO), which is responsible for transportation policy and planning for the region.  The goal of the safety plan 

is to reduce serious crashes and fatalities for all modes of travel within the Lake Havasu region, which stretches 

from Horizon 6 to Crystal Beach.  Since 2005, there have been 6,275 crashes reported in the region.  Of those, 30 

resulted in fatalities and 694 – about 11 percent – caused serious injury.  Approximately 30 percent of fatalities 

involved pedestrians – twice the state average. 

“The community travels every mile of our roadways daily and knows where the problems are,” said Jean Knight, 

project manager for LHMPO. “We encourage everyone who wants safer roads to attend the meeting or provide 

their thoughts through our online survey.” 

For questions about the study, contact Jean Knight at (928) 453-2824 or KnightJ@lhcaz.gov. For meeting 

materials in an alternate format or sign language interpretation at the meeting please contact Ashley Dunn at 

adunn@gciaz.com or (623) 362-1597 x 101 by Oct. 1. 

### 

mailto:KnightJ@lhcaz.gov
https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/Havasu_Safety
mailto:KnightJ@lhcaz.gov
mailto:adunn@gciaz.com






Are Your 

Streets SAFE?

The Lake Havasu MPO is preparing a 

transportation safety plan and needs your input 

on the unsafe travel behaviors you may have 

witnessed and any locations in the community 

where you feel unsafe to travel.

Participate online AND come to a community 

meeting to discuss with your neighbors 

whether or not the  Lake Havasu region is a safe 

place to drive, bike and walk.

ONLINE SURVEY:
www.surveymonkey.com/r/Havasu_Safety 

Survey closes on October 15, 2015.

PUBLIC MEETING:
Thursday, October 8, 3:30 pm 

Lake Havasu City Police Facility Meeting Room, 

2360 McCulloch Blvd, North • Lake Havasu City

A
co

m
a B

lvd

M
Cullo

ch B
lvd

Palo Verde Blvd

95

N

Do you feel safe driving in Lake Havasu?  

Is it safe to ride your bicycle?  

Do you feel safe walking?

!



Are Your 

Streets SAFE?

Do you feel safe driving in Lake Havasu?  

Is it safe to ride your bicycle?  

Do you feel safe walking?

!



A
co

m
a B

lvd

M
Cullo

ch B
lvd

Palo Verde Blvd

95

N

The Lake Havasu MPO is preparing a 

transportation safety plan and needs your 

input on the unsafe travel behaviors you 

may have witnessed and any locations in the 

community where you feel unsafe to travel.

Participate online AND come to a 

community meeting to discuss with your 

neighbors whether or not the  Lake Havasu 

region is a safe place to drive, bike and walk.

ONLINE SURVEY:
www.surveymonkey.com/r/Havasu_Safety 

Survey closes on October 31, 2015.

PUBLIC MEETING:
Thursday, October 8, 3:30 pm 

Lake Havasu City Police Facility Meeting Room, 

2360 McCulloch Blvd, North • Lake Havasu City





63% Due to Impaired Driving

DOUBLE the State Average

7% Involved a Bicyclist
30% Had an Elderly Driver
33% Involved a Pedestrian

30 Fatal Crashesin 10 Years
30 Fatal Crashesin 10 Years

Participate On August 4
•  Learn more about traffic safety in the

Lake Havasu Region

• Comment on potential safety projects

•  Help brainstorm ideas to change driver behaviors

Public Meeting:

Presentation begins at 5:30 pm

Lake Havasu City AAquatics Center, Relics & Rods Hall

100 Park Avenue, Lake Havasu City

TRAFFIC CRASHES IN  
LAKE HAVASU REGION

Our VISION:
Toward ZERO Deaths by 

Reducing Crashes

Our GOAL:
Reduce number of fatalities and serious 

injuries by 3-7 percent in the next 5 years Lake H
avasu Ave

Sm
oke

tre
e

Ave

Par
k A

ve

95

For More Information Contact



Lake Havasu Metropolitan Planning Organization (LHMPO) 
900 London Bridge Road – Bldg. B 
Lake Havasu City, AZ 86404 
Contact: Jean Knight (928) 453-2824  KnightJ@lhcaz.gov  

7/11/16 – For Immediate Release 

 

Residents asked to help reduce fatal crashes 
August 4th meeting to discuss ways to change driver behaviors

Lake Havasu, Arizona - Fatal traffic crashes in the Lake Havasu Region are twice more likely to involve 

impaired drivers, pedestrians, elderly drivers or bicyclist as compared to the Arizona average. In the past 10 

years, the Region has had 6,275 crashes of which 30 resulted in fatalities and 694 caused serious injuries.  

To reverse this trend, the Lake Havasu Metropolitan Planning Organization (LHMPO) has adopted a goal of 

reducing the number of fatalities and serious injuries from traffic crashes by 3 to 7 percent in the next 5 

years. "We can't meet this goal without support from the community. We need to increase awareness and 

work together to change driver behavior through education and enforcement," said Jean Knight, Manager, 

LHMPO. 

A public meeting to seek the community’s ideas will be held Thursday, August 4 from 5-7 p.m. at the Lake 

Havasu City Aquatics Center, 100 Park Avenue, LHC, 86403, Relics & Rods Hall. Presentation will begin at 

5:30 pm. 

Key findings of the transportation safety plan and seven potential safety improvement projects will be 

presented. After the presentation, residents will be asked to help brainstorm ideas to create awareness and 

change driver behaviors.  

The transportation safety plan is being conducted by the Lake Havasu Metropolitan Planning Organization (LHMPO), 

which is responsible for transportation policy and planning for the region.   

For questions about the study, contact Jean Knight at (928) 453-2824 or KnightJ@lhcaz.gov. For meeting materials in 

an alternate format or sign language interpretation at the meeting please contact Albert Granillo at 

agranillo@gciaz.com or (623) 362-1597 x 101 by August 1. 

### 



Vision: Toward ZERO Deaths by Reducing Crashes

Welcome!

5-5:30 pm -  Participate in the Open House Stations 
o CRASH LOCATIONS: Learn where crashes happen in the Lake Havasu Region 

o IMPAIRED DRIVING: See what it is like to drive under the influence of alcohol or marijuana 

o GRAFFITI WALL: How can we change how people drive in the Lake Havasu Region? 

o EMPHASIS AREAS AND STRATEGIES: Ideas on how the Region can focus on safety. 

o PROPOSED PROJECTS: Possible improvements to make travel safer. 

o KID'S TABLE: Coloring books and crayons for the kids 

5:30 pm - Presentation 
o Overview of study key findings and potential safety projects 

6:15 pm - Table Discussions - Making the Vision a Reality 
o Brainstorm ways to change driver behaviors 

Thank you for your participation.  
Please complete meeting evaluation on back and return before leaving! 

For more information on the study, please contact: 
Jean Knight, Manager, Lake Havasu Metropolitan Planning Organization 
900 London Bridge Road – Bldg B, Lake Havasu City, AZ 86404 
(928) 453-2824  -  KnightJ@lhcaz.gov  



Public Meeting Evaluation 
Date:   Thursday, August 4, 2015 

Time:    5:00 – 7:00 pm 

Please rate your agreement to the following statements.
 

 Strongly 
Agree Agree Disagree Strongly 

Disagree 
No 

Opinion 

The meeting was a valuable use of my time.      

The open house stations were fun and informative.      

I have a better understanding of the impact of 
crashes on our community. 

     

I was able to fully participate and share my ideas.      

I feel my input will make a difference in the 
development of the STSP. 

     

The facilitator did a good job in keeping the group 
on track and on time. 

     

The food and meeting facility were excellent.      

The overall event was excellent.      
  

What was the best thing about the meeting? 

 

 

 

 

 

Other Comments: 



Lake Havasu MPO STSP Public Meeting Summary P a g e | 1

  
Strategic Transportation Safety Plan 
Public Meeting Summary  
Date:  Thursday, August 4, 2016 
Time:  5 pm – 7 pm 
Location:  Lake Havasu City Aquatics Center, Relics and Rods Hall 

100 Park Avenue, Lake Havasu City 
 
Attendees 
A total of 24 people signed in to the meeting. 

Jerry Burns, Lake Havasu City Police 
Department  
Mike Terrinoni, Lake Havasu City Police 
Department  
Mike Maloy, Lake Havasu City Police 
Department  
David Lane, Candidate for Lake Havasu City 
Council. 
Patrick Cipres, Lake Havasu City  
Ryan Erickson, Desert Hills Fire Department  
Nicholas Ryan, Desert Hills Fire Department 
Jeremy Abbott, Lake Havasu City Engineer  
Steve Moss, Mohave County District 5 
Kelly Parks, Hospice of Havasu 
Anna Scherzer, Mohave County Department 
of Public Health 
Teri Parcells, City Council Candidate 
Tony Beck, River Cyclery and Sport 
Stuart Schmeling, LHC 
Julia Cameron-Borski, LHC 
M. Slettebo, Resident  
Tabatha Miller, Resident / LHC 
Brenda Frame, Mohave County  
Haley Walters, Today’s News- Herald 

HR Radtke, Resident 
Carl Flusche, Resident  
Jeanne Kentch, Mohave County 
Transportation commission 
Darryl Wright, Resident  
Mark Clark, LHC. 

 
Residents working in small groups. 

Meeting Purpose 
The purpose of the meeting was to review key findings for the Strategic Transportation Safety Plan on 
regional crash data, and to discuss potential safety projects. 
 



Lake Havasu MPO STSP Public Meeting Summary  P a g e  | 2 

Meeting Format 
Attendees arrived and were provided with a meeting agenda and evaluation form.  During the open 
house portion of the meeting, prior to and following the formal presentation, attendees were able to 
visit six stations to get information and provide their input.  

Station #1 – Crash Location Maps.  Participants reviewed crash locations on large maps of the 
study area.  
Station #2 – Impaired Driving. Participants used goggles which simulate driving while impaired.  
Station #3 - Graffiti Wall. Participants wrote what they would personally do to be safer when 
traveling on local roads, and what they would like others to do. 
Station #4- Emphasis and Strategies. Participants brainstormed ideas on ways to improve safety 
in the region. 
Station #5- Proposed Projects. Participants discussed potential roadway improvements to make 
traveling safer. 
Station #6 - Kids Table.  Coloring books on the importance of buckling up and road safety were 
provided. 

Presentation 
The project team provided an overview of the key findings, crash data analysis for the region, priority 
emphasis areas, and potential strategies to reduce crashes focusing on the four E’s (Engineering, 
Education, Enforcement, and Emergency Response).  

Which project(s) will make travel in the area safer? The following are comments from the residents.  
The bowling alley driveway is an unsafe area; it’s hard to see traffic when pulling out.  
Rainbow Ave - this is an unsafe road to due to elevation and lack of signage.  
The city needs more designated shoulders and better routes for our bicyclists.  
Have you looked at the time of day that most of these accidents are happening? Dusk and low 
lights are personally a problem for me when driving.  
We know that this town doesn’t like lights; however, have you looked into the options of glow in 
the dark or reflective paint stripes on the roads? 
Palo Verde Blvd. and McCulloch Blvd. - The solution to these two areas would be for us to have 
more designated bike routes and maps showing the improved lanes and trails.  
Keep on top of the street maintenance and street sweepers.  
McCulloch Blvd, Mesquite Ave and Swanson Ave- we can have better and continuous sidewalks 
along with designated bike lanes.  
We are surprised to see that the numbers of serious and fatal car crashes are not higher on 
Acoma Blvd. and London Bridge Rd.  
There is signage at McCulloch that indicated that drivers need to stop for pedestrians, however 
most drivers ignore them and keep driving.  
We are seeing tons of speeding on the hills and there is no advance warning, can you put 
warning signs before? 



Lake Havasu MPO STSP Public Meeting Summary  P a g e  | 3 

Emphasis Areas 
Participants were asked to sit at 5 tables, each on focused on a specific emphasis area (older drivers, 
young drivers, bicyclist, impaired driving, and pedestrian). Once in the small groups, each participant 
was given an 11x17 sheet for them to brainstorm, strategies, implementation ideas, and messaging. The 
following are the notes written by the residents. 
 
Older Drivers: 

Better lighting 
Conflicting speeds 
Removing variables- get pedestrians and bicyclist off the road 
Advance signage of traffic flows 
Young and older drivers going at different speeds 
Mandatory defensive driving class at the age of 65 as a condition to renew your license  
Older Drivers: required annual testing at age 65 
Require driving test every 2-5 years at 65 

Young Drivers: 
Youth should pass an actual driving course before getting driver’s license 
Education, education, education 
Tougher penalties for distracting conduct 
Licenses to be renewed in shorter periods of time 
Sober graduation (Search for federal grants) 

Bicyclist: 
Possible message for bicyclist/pedestrians/children “Expect Me.” 
Once messages are created, distribute to local PIOs and expand your contact base 
At state level: MVD could include questions regarding pedestrian and bike laws and regulations 
on driver’s test 
Start with young drivers- long term benefits 
Post best bike paths 
Street cleaners should clean the entire street 
Add curbs 
Spray paint bike lanes 

Impaired Drivers: 
DUI task force 
Partner shuttles 
Focused education in high school 
Police and fire department should partner with schools during graduation and holidays 
Make Drivers Education a requirement for freshmen 

Pedestrian: 
More transportation options 



Lake Havasu MPO STSP Public Meeting Summary P a g e  | 4 

Residents brainstorming pedestrian strategies 

Figure 1: Graffiti Wall 

More focused education (high school)
Visual aids – wrecked cars
Educate pedestrians on how to be seen by
drivers
Educate drivers to be aware of pedestrians
and upcoming sidewalks
Turn arrows at stop lights
Laws against texting while
driving/walking/biking
More sidewalks
Education on laws and common practices
for pedestrians and bikers
Hazard lights / HAWKS
Multi-use paths and connections
Lights at night

o Reflections
o Flashlights / head lamps
o Flashing bands

Enforcement of pedestrian laws
Slowing speeds in pedestrian corridor/ school zones

Comments and Questions 
We need to begin educating drivers at a lower level.
We need to be aware what is happening in “OUR” city, these numbers are not reflecting a big
city.
Can federal laws and regulation be in place for texting and driving?
The city should look into federal grants to bring back the “Sober Graduation” Program, and
visuals like wrecked cars at prom.
We have two drastically different groups here; we have the young drivers during the spring and
the older drivers during the winter.

Graffiti Wall 
The following comments were placed on the graffiti wall. 
How can we get people to drive safely? 

Put cellphones away!
Take keys away!
Keep your eyes on the road
Stop catching Pokémon!!!
Put the beer down
Stop running red lights
Enforcement
4 lanes
More lights
Bicycle and pedestrian paths



Lake Havasu MPO STSP Public Meeting Summary  P a g e  | 5 

Uber 
Stop at red lights and stop signs 
Put away your makeup and phones 
Stop looking at your GPS 
Stop Texting 
Slow down on Interior streets 
Shut up Legs! 

Stakeholder Letter 
There are two entertaining places to go in Havasu, first is the launch ramp, and second is the Motor 
Vehicle Department. 

Many older people are honest enough to say “I can't see the eyechart,” however it seems that the MVD 
gives them many chances and the benefit of the doubt. One gentleman was unable to read the top line. 
After he tried three times, and just said whatever came to his mind. Once done, the MVD employee told 
him to go take his picture. Out of Curiosity I asked the MVD employee, how was he able to pass, he 
obviously couldn't see very well, her response was "that is your opinion.” 

I have watched elderly people who are barely able to walk to their cars, get in and drive away. If they 
cannot lift their legs to walk how do they lift their legs to break? At the very least, their reaction time is 
very slow. They often get confused about which pedal is the gas and which is the break. They get 
confused about where they are going and stop in the middle of the street. 

People with CDL's commercial licenses, have to take a physical every two years, yet, there was no special 
licensing or testing required to drive the motorhome, pull a trailer or a boat behind it. People can get 
into the driver seat and hit the highways or your local streets with their pet sitting on their laps, with 
their paws on the steering wheel, and it's perfectly legal… 

Now, when there is an accident, and let's say these people survived, they admittedly say “I didn't see 
the red light, I didn't see the pedestrian, I hit the gas by mistake.”  We feel badly and let them continue 
driving because he wouldn't want to take away their independence. It's Okay for them to kill others and 
ruin families, but don't take away the elderly's independence. 

If we add drugs and/or alcohol into the mix, we got a ticking time bomb. 

Ophthalmologist, neurologist, and other physicians need to step up to the plate. Report individuals that 
refuse to give up their license because they have no business being on the road. 

After a person hits 75 years of age, they need to have physical. Check their eyes, reflexes, and ability to 
think. At 80, it should be every year.  

Meeting Notification 
The following methods were used to notify residents and key stakeholders about the public meeting: 

Postcards for the meeting were posted at various businesses and strategic locations within the 
City.  



Lake Havasu MPO STSP Public Meeting Summary  P a g e  | 6 

A news release was provided to City Management and distributed to all employees. 
A news release was sent to the local media.    
An email notice was sent by LHMPO to 125 people on its electronic mailing list  
LHMPO sent he meeting invitation to the Lake Havasu Chamber of Commerce and it was 
emailed to their full membership. 
Posted the meeting information on the LHMPO Facebook and twitter.  

Meeting Evaluation: 
A total of 18 participants returned a meeting evaluation form. The following table summarizes those 
responses. 

Please rate your agreement to the following statements.
 

 Strongly Agree Agree Disagree Strongly 
Disagree No Opinion 

The meeting 
was a valuable 
use of my time. 

9 9 0 0 0 

The open house 
stations were 
fun and 
informative. 

9 9 0 0 0 

I have a better 
understanding 
of the impact of 
crashes on the 
community. 

10 7 0 0 0 

I was able to 
fully participate 
and share my 
ideas. 

14 4 0 0 0 

I feel my input 
will make a 
difference in the 
development of 
the STSP. 

8 10 0 0 0 

The facilitator 
did a good job in 
keeping the 
group on track 
and on time. 

14 4 0 0 0 

The food and 
meeting facility 
were excellent. 

9 9 0 0 0 

The overall 
event was 
excellent. 

12 6 0 0 0 

 
What was the best thing about today? 



Lake Havasu MPO STSP Public Meeting Summary  P a g e  | 7 

The statistical data 
Jean, Janette, and Theresa 
Seeing the statistics and suggesting alternatives 
Data of deaths and injuries 
To know others are concerned, not just me 

Other Comments:  

Based on the number of crashes and number of fatalities SR95 is a high priority project 
Add a neutral column/choice, that’s not the same as “no opinion” 
A little paint will go a long way in reminding drivers that there are people sharing the roads 
using other forms of transportation 





































































Drivers seek ways to make roads safer at Havasu 
MPO public meeting 
Distractions, impairment among top causes of accidents 

By HALEY WALTERS TODAY’S NEWS-HERALD

Updated Aug 4, 2016
  
Mohave County 
Supervisor Steve Moss 
(right) chats with 
David Lane about road 
safety at Thursday 
evening’s 
Metropolitan Planning 
Organization’s 
transportation safety 
meeting.

Jeremy Abbott tries out some drunk goggles the police department 
handed out to illustrate how drivers’ vision can be impaired while 
driving at a public safety meeting Thursday evening.

If you’re driving and reading this, you might want to be 
watching the road instead. 

A public comment session hosted by the Metropolitan 
Planning Organization focused on Havasu’s above average 
rates of accidents attributed to impaired and distracted 
driving. Two-thirds of Havasu’s fatal accidents between 2005 
and 2014 are from impaired driving, while the state average is 
around one-third. 

“I think we’re all in denial and think we can do all of these 
things while driving,” attendee Kelly Parks said. 

Drivers said distractions and impairment don’t help on 
Havasu’s already winding and hilly roads, and would like to see 
more safety rules implemented and enforced along with 
better accommodations for pedestrians. 

“Almost all pedestrian fatalities are at night under dark 
conditions,” Mike Blankenship with AMEC Foster Wheeler said. 



Attendees discussed ways to address other areas of concern for Havasu’s roadways - bicyclists and older 
drivers. Havasu has had higher rates of fatal accidents involving those variables compared to the rest of 
the state as well. 

Drivers said they want to see better education for younger drivers too, and requested that MPO search 
for grants to help educate Havasu’s new drivers on laws and safety. 

“Parents also have to be role models for their kids. We’re all distracted with media, but you need to set 
the example,” attendee David Lane said. 

MPO is working with the city to secure government funding for roadway safety improvements, and 
needed feedback from local drivers about what they feel Havasu roads need to be safer. 

MPO Manager Jean Knight said if Havasu’s accident rates provide the best benefit to cost ratio, the city 
has a good chance in securing the money for their proposed projects. The MPO’s advisory committee 
will work this fall to prioritize which areas receive that possible funding first. 

“It’s kind of barbaric if you think about it,” Blankenship said. “If we can prove to ADOT that we have a lot 
of fatal crashes and a lot of serious injury crashes it improves your chances of getting federal safety 
dollars.” 

(6) comments

see you Aug 5, 2016 9:19am 

"...you might want to be watching the road instead" Really, what a good tip! Maybe everyone has a Tesla? 

 

Watchme Aug 5, 2016 1:21pm 

NO LIGHTS!! This is a dark community and that is why a lot of people move here. 

 

Roco Aug 5, 2016 2:47pm 

Since LHC is a dark sky town, maybe pedestrians need to the extra precaution to be seen by motorists and motorists should be 
more observant towards pedestrians. Maybe sidewalks can help. 

 

Roco Aug 5, 2016 2:28pm 

What I see is a lot of "entitled drivers." At any 95 intersection, you have drivers turning right onto the highway not yielding to 
oncoming traffic. Most don't even come to a complete stop. Not yielding to faster cars (doing the speed limit) in the left lane. 
And let's not bring up the constant tailgating while driving anywhere in the town. Projects and the such will not help with these 
issues. 

 

BLAZO Aug 5, 2016 6:17pm 

I see some idiot texting and driving at least twice a week. Guys and gals. 

 

HotasaJalapeno Aug 5, 2016 6:38pm 

Donald Trump says texting while driving is perfectly safe.

 



Our View: Multiple factors lead to 
dangers on Havasu roads

Updated Aug 7, 2016 

 It's hardly a controversial statement to say that Lake Havasu City needs safer roads. What's not so clear is why our roads seem 

to be more dangerous than routes elsewhere. 

The Metropolitan Planning Organization is trying to get to the bottom of it. An MPO study in 2015 revealed, to no one's 

surprise, that several intersections along State Route 95 – particularly Kiowa on the north end of town and Mulberry toward the 

south – were among the city's most dangerous crossings. 

There are many reasons for dangerous roads and hazardous intersections, but there are a couple of solutions that could help. 

Ultimately, the city and Arizona Department of Transportation are going to have to work together to streamline traffic signals 

on State Route 95, to prevent much of the stop-and-go mess that's especially noticeable on holidays weekends and other 

periods of high visitorship. It's also likely that we'll one day have to bite the bullet and pay for a bypass around the eastern part 

of the city, which would allow the city to effectively take over traffic calming on the existing highway. 

Until these admittedly expensive undertakings are reality, however, it's important for all of us to be good citizens on our 

roadways. Oh, it's easy to blame traffic accidents on winter visitors, spring breakers and drivers from other far-flung locales. It's 

never us, after all. 

But any traffic cop can tell you distracted driving isn't limited to the tourists. In fact, the Metropolitan Planning Organization 

says the number of accidents attributed to impaired and distracted driving is much higher than the rest of the state – two-thirds 

of fatal accidents between 2005 and 2014 were from impaired driving, while the state average is about one-third. 

Havasu probably does need better enforcement of existing traffic laws and perhaps additional safety rules for local roadways. 

It's also likely that pedestrians need better safety accommodations, since Havasu has a higher rate of fatal accidents involving 

bicyclists and people on foot. 

The MPO has been meeting for some time to untangle Havasu's transportation mess, but it's not too late to get involved – 

review the organization's findings so far, and learn how you can participate in future discussions, at http://www.lhmpo.org/. 

– Today's News-Herald 

 



 

September 2016 Lake Havasu MPO Strategic Transportation Plan  Page | B 

Appendix B: HSIP Project Analysis 

 




















	10112016_Executive-Board_Agenda
	item #5.1_Consent_Agenda
	07192016_Executive-Board_Minutes
	item-7.1_2017-Meeting_schedule
	2017_EB_Meeting_Schedule_Draft
	item-7.2_letter-to-customs
	10112016_Customs-Border-Protection
	item-7.3_STSP_Adopt
	LHMPO-STSP-DRAFT
	LHMPO Public Outreach Summary_FINAL_20151123R.pdf
	LHMPO Public Outreach Summary_Draft_2015.11.20 v2
	1.0 Overview
	1.1 Key Issues Identified

	2.0 Online Survey
	2.1 Perception of Safety Traveling on Regional Roads
	2.2 Unsafe Behaviors Observed
	2.3 Other Unsafe Behaviors Observed
	2.4 Primary Cause of Crashes
	2.5 What Needs to Be Changed to Make It Safer?
	2.6 Unsafe Locations to Drive, Bicycle, or Walk
	2.6.1 Drivers
	2.6.2 Pedestrians
	2.6.3 Bicyclists

	2.7 Respondent Demographics

	3.0 Public Meeting Summary
	3.1 Overview
	3.2 Meeting Format
	3.3 Graffiti Wall
	3.4 Preferred Strategies
	3.5 Crash Location Maps
	3.6 Questions/Comments
	3.7 Meeting Evaluation

	4.0 Public Outreach Notification
	Appendix
	 Online Survey Questionnaire
	 Survey - All Open Ended Responses
	 Map Locations and Comments
	 Public Meeting Handout
	 Public Meeting Presentation
	 Public Meeting Evaluation
	 Public Meeting Attendees
	 Public Meeting Sign-In Sheets
	 News Release
	 Havasu News Article
	 Flyer
	 Postcard


	LHMPO_CommentsForReport
	LHMPO Final Comments with Comment ID
	Apendix Files.pdf
	Online survey questionnaire
	Data_All_151106 Summary PDF
	Lake Havasu MPO TSP handout
	LHMPO Presentation v2
	Public Meeting #1 evaluation results 1
	Public Meeting Attendees
	Scanned Sign In Sheets from Oct 8 Mtg 20151014
	2015.09.21_LHMPONewsRelease_PublicMtgSurvey-Final
	09182015_Newspaper_Article
	Lake Havasu MPO TSP flyer
	Lake Havasu MPO TSP Postcard_rd3_hires

	LHMPO STSP August 2016 Meeting Documentation 160821.pdf
	Meeting #2 News Release 20160708 REVISED
	LHMPO Meeting Summary  20160815 FINAL
	Presentation
	Emphasis Areas
	Comments and Questions
	Graffiti Wall
	Stakeholder Letter
	Meeting Notification
	Meeting Evaluation:

	Scanned Sign In Sheets
	Scanned Stakeholder Letter
	Scanned- Emphasis Areas
	Scanned Meeting Evaluations
	August 2016 News Article v2
	Drivers seek ways to make roads safer at Havasu MPO public meeting
	Distractions, impairment among top causes of accidents
	(6) comments


	Our View - August 2016
	Our View: Multiple factors lead to dangers on Havasu roads


	Blank Page


	LHMPO-STSP-DRAFT-R1.pdf
	LHMPO Public Outreach Summary.pdf
	LHMPO Public Outreach Summary_Draft_2015.11.20 v2
	1.0 Overview
	1.1 Key Issues Identified

	2.0 Online Survey
	2.1 Perception of Safety Traveling on Regional Roads
	2.2 Unsafe Behaviors Observed
	2.3 Other Unsafe Behaviors Observed
	2.4 Primary Cause of Crashes
	2.5 What Needs to Be Changed to Make It Safer?
	2.6 Unsafe Locations to Drive, Bicycle, or Walk
	2.6.1 Drivers
	2.6.2 Pedestrians
	2.6.3 Bicyclists

	2.7 Respondent Demographics

	3.0 Public Meeting Summary
	3.1 Overview
	3.2 Meeting Format
	3.3 Graffiti Wall
	3.4 Preferred Strategies
	3.5 Crash Location Maps
	3.6 Questions/Comments
	3.7 Meeting Evaluation

	4.0 Public Outreach Notification
	Appendix
	 Online Survey Questionnaire
	 Survey - All Open Ended Responses
	 Map Locations and Comments
	 Public Meeting Handout
	 Public Meeting Presentation
	 Public Meeting Evaluation
	 Public Meeting Attendees
	 Public Meeting Sign-In Sheets
	 News Release
	 Havasu News Article
	 Flyer
	 Postcard


	LHMPO_CommentsForReport
	LHMPO Final Comments with Comment ID
	Apendix Files.pdf
	Online survey questionnaire
	Data_All_151106 Summary PDF
	Lake Havasu MPO TSP handout
	LHMPO Presentation v2
	Public Meeting #1 evaluation results 1
	Public Meeting Attendees
	Scanned Sign In Sheets from Oct 8 Mtg 20151014
	2015.09.21_LHMPONewsRelease_PublicMtgSurvey-Final
	09182015_Newspaper_Article
	Lake Havasu MPO TSP flyer
	Lake Havasu MPO TSP Postcard_rd3_hires


	LHMPO Public Outreach Summary(2).pdf
	LHMPO Public Outreach Summary_Draft_2015.11.20 v2
	1.0 Overview
	1.1 Key Issues Identified

	2.0 Online Survey
	2.1 Perception of Safety Traveling on Regional Roads
	2.2 Unsafe Behaviors Observed
	2.3 Other Unsafe Behaviors Observed
	2.4 Primary Cause of Crashes
	2.5 What Needs to Be Changed to Make It Safer?
	2.6 Unsafe Locations to Drive, Bicycle, or Walk
	2.6.1 Drivers
	2.6.2 Pedestrians
	2.6.3 Bicyclists

	2.7 Respondent Demographics

	3.0 Public Meeting Summary
	3.1 Overview
	3.2 Meeting Format
	3.3 Graffiti Wall
	3.4 Preferred Strategies
	3.5 Crash Location Maps
	3.6 Questions/Comments
	3.7 Meeting Evaluation

	4.0 Public Outreach Notification
	Appendix
	 Online Survey Questionnaire
	 Survey - All Open Ended Responses
	 Map Locations and Comments
	 Public Meeting Handout
	 Public Meeting Presentation
	 Public Meeting Evaluation
	 Public Meeting Attendees
	 Public Meeting Sign-In Sheets
	 News Release
	 Havasu News Article
	 Flyer
	 Postcard


	LHMPO_CommentsForReport
	LHMPO Final Comments with Comment ID
	Apendix Files.pdf
	Online survey questionnaire
	Data_All_151106 Summary PDF
	Lake Havasu MPO TSP handout
	LHMPO Presentation v2
	Public Meeting #1 evaluation results 1
	Public Meeting Attendees
	Scanned Sign In Sheets from Oct 8 Mtg 20151014
	2015.09.21_LHMPONewsRelease_PublicMtgSurvey-Final
	09182015_Newspaper_Article
	Lake Havasu MPO TSP flyer
	Lake Havasu MPO TSP Postcard_rd3_hires






